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branch locations

78 branch locations  
(24 more than last year) 
and a centralized Loan 
Center have increased 
our delivery capabilities 
to an expanded  
customer base.78
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South Amboy, South Orange, South River, Spotswood, Teaneck, Toms River, Union City, Wall Twp., West New York (3), Woodbridge (2)



our mission is to consistently provide superior value

to our stockholders
by achieving strong financial performance

to our customers
by delivering high quality financial solutions that help improve 
and enrich their lives

to our employees
by maintaining a challenging and rewarding work environment 

to our communities
by committing our personal energies and financial resources 
and by exemplifying outstanding leadership

As we accomplish our mission, we will hold ourselves to 
the highest standards of personal and professional integrity

For the year ended 
2004, assets increased 
50% to $6.43 billion, 
and total deposits 
also increased 50% 
to $4.05 billion.6.4 b



to our stockholders

Net loans outstanding 
at year-end 2004 
were $3.67 billion, a 
nearly 66% increase 
above 2003.3.7 b

We are proud to be your company, and I am pleased to report that 2004 was marked by several positive 

achievements for Provident Financial Services, Inc. Our second year as a public company witnessed significant 

growth in our asset size, market presence and earnings results. 

In July, we completed our acquisition of the former First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc., a strategic combination that 

has given us a greatly enhanced presence in the vibrant, growing markets of central New Jersey. At year-end 

2004, we reported assets of $6.43 billion, an increase of over 50% above year-end 2003, and our share of the 

New Jersey deposit market was the eighth largest of any non-brokerage-owned bank. The combination has added 

twenty-two former First Savings Bank locations to our branch network which, coupled with two new offices 

that were opened during the year, has brought The Provident Bank’s total to seventy-eight branches throughout 

our ten-county market area. In addition, we successfully transformed First Sentinel’s former headquarters into 

a dynamic and strategically located Loan Center providing greater convenience to our clients while facilitating 

effective deployment of our lending team. Of equal importance has been the enhancement to our pool of employee 

talent. Two organizations with a century-plus tradition of customer care and professional expertise have 

come together as a single team committed to maintaining and growing relationships with our customers.

focus on performance…
For the year ended December 31, 2004, Provident Financial Services, Inc. reported net income of $49.3 million, 

or $0.80 per basic and diluted common share, compared to net income of $18.7 million, or $0.31 per basic and 

diluted common share, for the year ended December 31, 2003. Net income for 2003 was impacted by a one-time 

$15.6 million net-of-tax contribution to establish The Provident Bank Foundation. We continually strive to 

optimize non-interest income, and in 2004 we realized a 22.3% increase in this category to $29.2 million 

compared to $23.8 million in 2003. Nevertheless, careful management of net interest income continues to provide 

our principal source of revenue. For 2004 we reported total net interest income, after provisions for loan 



Net income for 2004 
was $49.3 million 
representing earnings 
per share of $0.80—
over two-and-one-half 
times the results 
reported for 2003.49.3 m

“2004 was a year of positive 

achievement for us. Our 

successful acquisition and 

integration of a strong 

franchise in great markets 

has resulted in major increases 

in our financial performance 

on nearly every front.”
Paul M. Pantozzi
Chairman of the Board, CEO



focus on performance...

losses, of $158.8 million which represents a 23.3% increase above the $128.7 million reported in 2003. Despite 

a challenging economic and competitive environment in 2004, our net interest margin for the full year increased 

to 3.40% as compared to 3.37% in 2003, and our efficiency ratio improved to 62.3% as compared to 66.9% 

(calculated without the effect of the one-time Foundation contribution) in 2003. Although rising interest rates 

and a flattening yield curve continue to put pressure on net interest margins, our entire team remains 

committed to running an ever-more-efficient operation, and we consider effective cost management a major 

contributor to our earnings momentum.

…focus on quality…
Our constant objective has been to help the individuals and businesses in our markets achieve their financial 

goals. Complementary to that objective is our unwavering commitment to prudent asset management. As of 

year-end 2004, net loans as a percentage of total assets increased to 57.1% as compared to 51.7% at the end of 2003. 

While the acquisition added over $1 billion in loan assets to our balance sheet, our emphasis on originating 

business and commercial real estate loans has resulted in continued portfolio growth, and our standards of 

credit quality have remained high. At year-end 2004, our percentage of non-performing loans to total loans 

stood at 0.17% as compared to 0.27% at year-end 2003.

…and focus on people…
We have continued to invest in the talent and technology needed to expand core deposit relationships, and at 

the end of 2004, the proportion of core checking and savings deposits to total deposits was in excess of 65%, 

as it was at the prior year’s end. Given the fact that the valued relationships we acquired from First Sentinel 

had a greater relative proportion of non-core time deposits, and especially in light of the intense competition 

for core deposits in our market area, we view this as a significant accomplishment. Our marketing efforts and 

sales training are focused on assuring customers that we are about more than just transactions and services. 

Our people take a proactive role in helping customers choose the right financial solutions, and they remain 

our most valuable resource.

Net interest income  
after loan loss provisions 
increased over 23%  
to $158.8 million.

158.8 m
 



“Our constant objective is 

to help the individuals and 

businesses in our markets 

achieve their financial goals.  

We continue to invest in 

the talent and technology 

needed to expand customer 

relationships.”

strategic growth in assets 
and revenues
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“We have positioned ourselves 

well to benefit from our 

acquisition as we continue to 

realize synergies and reduce 

costs. Most of all, we are 

enthused about our prospects 

for expanding current customer 

relationships and continuing to 

acquire new ones within our 

enhanced market presence.”

a continuing focus on quality 
and an ever-sharpening focus 
on efficiency
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Throughout our history we have remained passionately involved in our communities and committed to improv-

ing their quality of life. As a function of our stock conversion in 2003, The Provident Bank Foundation was 

established as a financially independent entity to further these ends. In 2004, the Foundation contributed over 

$2.3 million to 394 organizations dedicated to enhancing the education, wellness, culture and social fabric 

of New Jersey.

…create consistent value.
In addition to strategic growth and earnings enhancement, we view capital management as fundamental to the 

delivery of stockholder value. In 2004, we completed our first stock repurchase program of just under 4 million 

common shares, and in January 2005 our Board of Directors authorized our second repurchase program of 5% 

or approximately 3.7 million shares. Simultaneously, the Board authorized a 16.7% increase in the cash dividend 

to be paid for the first quarter of 2005 to the level of seven cents per common share.

As we move forward into 2005, I am encouraged by our opportunities for improved financial performance. 

We have positioned ourselves well to benefit from our acquisition as we continue to realize synergies and reduce 

costs. We have embraced a “back-to-basics” philosophy to stay focused solely on the business practices that 

return value to customers and stockholders. Most of all, we are enthused about our prospects for expanding 

current customer relationships and continuing to acquire new ones within our enhanced market presence.

On behalf of your Board of Directors, I want to commend our management and staff for their exceptional 

efforts and to thank you for your continued support.

At year-end 2004, the 
proportion of non-
performing loans to 
total loans was 0.17% 
compared to 0.27% 
the prior year..17%

Paul M. Pantozzi

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

 



Provident’s leadership team

Our Dedicated Team of Professionals:

The members of Provident’s executive leadership team are distinguished by the energy, intelligence, experience 

and integrity they bring in fulfilling our corporate mission, in delivering on our brand promise of “Hassle-free 

banking for busy people®” and in executing our customer-centric strategy.

Photo: (from left to right)

Kevin J. Ward, Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer; Donald Blum, Executive VP and Chief Lending Officer; 

Paul M. Pantozzi, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer; John F. Kuntz, General Counsel and Corporate 

Secretary; Christopher Martin, President; Gregory French, Senior VP—Market Development and Delivery; 

Linda A. Niro, Senior VP and Chief Financial Officer.
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The summary information presented below at or for each of the periods presented is derived in part from and should 
be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Provident Financial Services, Inc. On January 15, 
2003, The Provident Bank completed its conversion from a mutual savings bank to a stock savings bank, and in con-
nection therewith Provident Financial Services, Inc. sold 59,618,300 shares of common stock which resulted in $567.2  
of net proceeds of which $293.2 was utilized to acquire all of the outstanding common stock of The Provident Bank.  
In addition, Provident Financial Services, Inc. contributed $4.8 million in cash and 1,920,000 shares of its common stock 
to The Provident Bank Foundation.

At December 31,  (In thousands) 2004  2003  2002  2001  2000

Selected Financial Condition Data:
Total assets $ 6,433,322 $ 4,284,878 $ 3,919,208 $ 2,869,717 $ 2,641,579
Loans, net (1) 3,673,445 2,216,736 2,031,869 1,994,636 1,954,992
Investment securities (2) 445,633 517,789 216,119 112,951 124,059
Securities available for sale 1,406,340 1,151,829 1,242,118 494,716 335,039
Deposits 4,050,473 2,695,976 3,243,334 2,341,723 2,168,336
Borrowings 1,166,064 736,328 323,081 195,767 179,903
Stockholders’ equity 1,136,776 817,119 326,009 292,130 263,072

For the Year Ended December 31,  (In thousands) 2004  2003  2002  2001  2000

Selected Operations Data:
Interest income $ 229,543 $ 184,506 $ 177,307 $ 180,979 $ 179,520
Interest expense 67,185  54,633  63,241  84,523  89,690

Net interest income 162,358 129,873 114,066 96,456 89,830
Provision for loan losses  3,600   1,160  12,800  1,900  2,060

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 158,758  128,713  101,266  94,556  87,770

Non-interest income 29,151  23,834  24,147  21,236  18,276

Non-interest expense 119,334  126,779  89,087  80,629  75,865

Income before income tax expense and the cumulative 
 effect of a change in accounting principle 68,575 25,768 36,326 35,163 30,181
Income tax expense 19,274  7,024  9,231  11,083  9,283

Income before the cumulative effect of  
 a change in accounting principle 49,301  18,744  27,095  24,080  20,898

Cumulative effect of change in accounting  
principle (3) —  —  (519) —  —

Net income $ 49,301  $ 18,744  $ 26,576  $ 24,080  $ 20,898

Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per share (4) $ 0.80 $ 0.31 $ — $ — $ —
Diluted earnings per share (4) $ 0.80 $ 0.31 $ — $ — $ —

(1) Loans are shown net of allowance for loan losses, deferred fees and unearned discount.
(2) Investment securities are held to maturity.
(3)  In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, the Company performed a goodwill impairment test on the 

goodwill associated with the purchase of Provident Mortgage Corporation. It was determined that the goodwill was impaired and a charge of 
$519,000 was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

(4)  Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes the results of operations from January 15, 2003, the date the 
Company completed its conversion, in the amount of $17,755,000.

selected financial data
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

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report are 
not based on historical facts and are “forward-looking 
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the 
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. Such forward-looking statements 
may be identified by reference to a future period or  
periods, or by the use of forward-looking terminology, 
such as “may,” “will,” “believe,” “expect,” “estimate,” 
“anticipate,” “continue,” or similar terms or variations  
on those terms, or the negative of those terms. Forward-
looking statements are subject to numerous risks and 
uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those related 
to the economic environment, particularly in the market 
areas in which the company operates, competitive prod-
ucts and pricing, fiscal and monetary policies of the U.S. 
Government, changes in government regulations affect-
ing financial institutions, including regulatory fees and 
capital requirements, changes in prevailing interest rates,  

acquisitions and the integration of acquired businesses, 
credit risk management, asset-liability management, the 
financial and securities markets and the availability of 
and costs associated with sources of liquidity. 

The Company wishes to caution readers not to place 
undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, 
which speak only as of the date made. The Company 
wishes to advise readers that the factors listed above 
could affect the Company’s financial performance and 
could cause the Company’s actual results for future peri-
ods to differ materially from any opinions or statements 
expressed with respect to future periods in any current 
statements. The Company does not undertake and spe-
cifically declines any obligation to publicly release the 
result of any revisions which may be made to any forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after 
the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence  
of anticipated or unanticipated events.

forward-looking statements

In accordance with the New York Stock Exchange 
(“NYSE”) corporate governance requirements for listed 
companies, the Company filed its Chief Executive Officer 
Certification with the NYSE in 2004.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
certifications made pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 were filed as exhibits to the Company’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2004.

NYSE Disclosures Under Section 303A
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 General

On January 15, 2003, Provident Financial Services, Inc. 
(“the Company”), became the holding company for The 
Provident Bank (“the Bank”), following the completion of 
the conversion of the Bank to a stock-chartered bank. The 
Company issued an aggregate of 59,618,300 shares of its 
common stock in a subscription offering to eligible deposi-
tors. Concurrent with the conversion, the Company con-
tributed an additional 1,920,000 shares of its common stock 
and $4.8 million in cash to The Provident Bank Foundation, 
a charitable foundation established by the Bank.

The Company conducts business through its subsidiary, 
the Bank, a community-oriented bank operating 78 full-
service branches in ten counties throughout northern and 
central New Jersey. 

On December 22, 2003, the Company entered into an 
agreement and plan of merger, under which First Sentinel 
Bancorp, Inc. (“First Sentinel”) merged with and into the 
Company and First Savings Bank, the wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of First Sentinel, merged with and into the Bank. 
The Company completed the acquisition of First Sentinel 
and the merger of First Savings Bank, with and into the 
Bank, as of July 14, 2004.

 Strategy

The Bank, established in 1839, is the oldest bank in the 
state of New Jersey. The Bank offers a full range of retail 
and commercial loan and deposit products. The Bank 
emphasizes personal service and convenience as part of 
its Customer Relationship Management strategy.

The Bank’s strategy is to grow profitably through a  
commitment to credit quality and expanding market 
share by acquiring, retaining and expanding customer 
relationships, while carefully managing interest rate risk. 

In recent years, the Bank has focused on commercial real 
estate, construction, multi-family and commercial loans as 
part of its strategy to diversify the loan portfolio and 
reduce interest rate risk. These types of loans generally 
have adjustable rates that initially are higher than resi-
dential loans and generally have a higher rate of risk.  
The Bank’s credit policy focuses on quality underwriting 
standards and close monitoring of the portfolio. The First 
Sentinel acquisition has increased the residential mortgage 
component of the loan portfolio. At year-end 2004, retail 
loans accounted for 64.4% of the loan portfolio and  

commercial loans accounted for 35.6%. The Company’s 
strategy is to continue to diversify the loan portfolio and 
to focus on commercial real estate and commercial and 
industrial lending relationships.

The Company’s customer relationship management strat-
egy focuses on increasing core accounts and expanding 
relationships through its branch network, online banking 
and telephone banking touch points. The First Sentinel 
acquisition added 22 full-service branches with $1.36 bil-
lion in deposits, including core deposits totaling $862.7 
million as of the July 14, 2004 acquisition date. Also in 
2004, the Company opened two de novo branch locations. 
In 2003, the Bank acquired three branch offices with 
deposits from another financial institution and opened 
two de novo branch offices. The Company continues to 
evaluate opportunities to increase market share by 
expanding within existing and contiguous markets.  
Core deposits, consisting of all savings and demand 
deposit accounts, are generally a stable, relatively  
inexpensive source of funds. At December 31, 2004,  
core deposits were 65.6% of total deposits. 

A significant amount of capital was raised in the conver-
sion of the Bank to a stock-chartered bank in 2003. Man-
agement has developed capital management strategies  
to effectively utilize excess capital and improve return on 
equity and earnings per share growth. The Company’s 
capital management strategy includes the following  
components: payment of cash dividends; stock repur-
chases; acquisitions; and use of wholesale leverage.  
The Company declared and paid its first cash dividend  
in the second quarter of 2003, and has since increased the 
quarterly cash dividend per share three times for a total 
of 75.0%. The Company’s Board of Directors approved  
the most recent 16.7% increase in the quarterly cash divi-
dend rate on January 26, 2005. The Company’s range of 
cash dividend payout is approximately 30% to 45% of  
net income. 

In 2004, the Company repurchased 4.0 million shares  
of its common stock at an average cost of $17.88 per  
share. Also in 2004, the Company repurchased 187,000 
shares of common stock at an average cost of $19.11  
per share for The Provident Financial Services, Inc. 2003 
Stock Award Plan. On January 26, 2005, the Company’s 
Board of Directors authorized a new corporate stock 
repurchase program under which 5%, or approximately 
3.7 million shares of the Company’s common stock may 
be repurchased. 

management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations  



management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations  (continued)
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

The Company has used wholesale leverage strategies in 
the past and may do so in the future as market conditions 
and interest rate risk management concerns dictate.  
In a leverage transaction, wholesale borrowings are used 
to purchase mortgage-backed investment securities and, 
to a lesser extent, to fund commercial real estate loans. 
Leverage strategies generally increase the Company’s 
interest rate risk exposure and are carefully monitored 
and measured as part of active balance sheet management. 
No leverage transactions were implemented in 2004.

The Company’s results of operations are primarily depen-
dent upon net interest income, the difference between 
interest earned on interest-earning assets and the interest 
expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Changes in 
interest rates could have an adverse effect on net interest 
income, because as a general matter, the Company’s  
interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature more quickly 
than its interest-earning assets. An increase in interest 
rates generally would result in a decrease in the Company’s 
average interest rate spread and net interest income, 
which could have a negative effect on profitability. The 
Company generates non-interest income such as income 
from retail and business account fees, loan servicing fees, 
loan origination fees, income from loan or securities sales, 
fees from trust services and investment product sales and 
other fees. The Company’s operating expenses primarily 
consist of compensation and benefits expenses, marketing 
and advertising expense, occupancy and equipment 
expense and other general and administrative expenses. 
The Company’s results of operations are also affected  
by general economic conditions, changes in market  
interest rates, actions of regulatory agencies and govern-
ment policies.

 Critical Accounting Policies

The calculation of the allowance for loan losses is a criti-
cal accounting policy of the Company. The allowance for 
loan losses is a valuation account that reflects manage-
ment’s evaluation of the probable incurred losses in the 
loan portfolio. The Company maintains the allowance for 
loan losses through provisions for loan losses that are 
charged to income. Charge-offs against the allowance for 
loan losses are taken on loans where management deter-
mines that the collection of loan principal is unlikely. 
Recoveries made on loans that have been charged-off  
are credited to the allowance for loan losses.

The Company’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allow-
ance for loan losses includes a review of all loans on 
which the collectibility of principal may not be reasonably 
assured. For residential mortgage and consumer loans 
this is determined primarily by delinquency and collateral 
values. For commercial real estate and commercial  
loans an extensive review of financial performance,  
payment history and collateral values is conducted on  
a quarterly basis.

As part of the evaluation of the adequacy of the allow-
ance for loan losses, each quarter management prepares  
a worksheet. This worksheet categorizes the entire loan 
portfolio by certain risk characteristics such as loan type 
(residential mortgage, commercial mortgage, construction, 
commercial, etc.) and loan risk rating. 

When assigning a risk rating to a loan, management uti-
lizes a nine point internal risk rating system. Loans deemed 
to be “acceptable quality” are rated one through four, 
with a rating of one established for loans with minimal 
risk. Loans that are deemed to be of “questionable quality” 
are rated five (watch) or six (special mention). Loans with 
adverse classifications (substandard, doubtful or loss) are 
rated seven, eight or nine, respectively. Commercial mort-
gage, commercial and construction loans are rated indi-
vidually and each lending officer is responsible for risk 
rating loans in his or her portfolio. These risk ratings  
are then reviewed by the department manager, the Chief 
Lending Officer and the Credit Administration Department. 
The risk ratings are then confirmed by the Loan Review 
Department of the Finance Division and they are periodi-
cally reviewed by the Credit Committee in the credit 
renewal or approval process.

Management believes the primary risks inherent in the 
portfolio are possible increases in interest rates, a decline 
in the economy, generally, and a decline in real estate 
market values. Any one or a combination of these events 
may adversely affect borrowers’ ability to repay the loans, 
resulting in increased delinquencies, loan losses and 
future levels of provisions. Accordingly, the Company 
has provided for loan losses at the current level to address 
the current risk in the loan portfolio. Management con-
siders it important to maintain the ratio of the allowance 
for loan losses to total loans at an acceptable level given 
current economic conditions, interest rates and the com-
position of the portfolio. 
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Although management believes that the Company has 
established and maintained the allowance for loan losses 
at adequate levels, additions may be necessary if future 
economic and other conditions differ substantially from 
the current operating environment. In addition, various 
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examina-
tion process, periodically review the Company’s allowance 
for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Company 
to recognize additions to the allowance or additional 
write-downs based on their judgments about information 
available to them at the time of their examination. 
Although management uses the best information avail-
able, the level of the allowance for loan losses remains  
an estimate that is subject to significant judgment and 
short-term change.

Additional critical accounting policies relate to judgments 
about other asset impairments, including goodwill, invest-
ment securities and deferred tax assets. The Company 
engages an independent third party to perform an annual 
analysis to test the aggregate balance of goodwill for 
impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill 
and Other Intangible Assets.” For purposes of goodwill 
impairment evaluation, The Provident Bank is identified 
as the reporting unit. Fair value of goodwill is determined 
in the same manner as goodwill recognized in a business 
combination and uses standard valuation methodologies 
including a review of comparable transactions and dis-
counted cash flow analysis. If the carrying amount of 
goodwill pursuant to this analysis were to exceed the  
implied fair value of goodwill, an impairment loss would 
be recognized. No impairment loss was required to be 
recognized for the years ended December 31, 2004 or 2003. 
During 2002, in connection with the implementation of 
SFAS No. 142, the Company determined that $519,000 of 
goodwill related to the acquisition of a mortgage com-
pany was impaired, and recognized the impairment as  
a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

The Company’s available-for-sale securities portfolio is  
carried at estimated fair value, with any unrealized gains 
or losses, net of taxes, reported as accumulated other  
comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. Estimated 

fair values are based on published or securities dealers’ 
market prices. Securities which the Company has the 
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classi-
fied as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost. 
The Company conducts a periodic review and evaluation 
of the securities portfolio to determine if any declines in 
the fair values of securities are other than temporary. If 
such a decline were deemed other than temporary, the 
Company would write down the security to fair value 
through a charge to current period operations. The market 
value of the securities portfolio is significantly affected 
by changes in interest rates. In general, as interest rates 
rise, the market value of fixed-rate securities decreases 
and as interest rates fall, the market value of fixed-rate 
securities increases. With significant changes in interest 
rates, the Company evaluates its intent and ability to hold 
securities to maturity or for a sufficient amount of time to 
recover the recorded principal balance.

The determination of whether deferred tax assets will  
be realizable is predicated on estimates of future taxable 
income. Such estimates are subject to management’s judg-
ment. A valuation allowance is established when man-
agement is unable to conclude that it is more likely than 
not that it will realize deferred tax assets based on the 
nature and timing of these items. In 2004, the Company 
recorded a $1.9 million reduction of the valuation allowance 
pertaining to charitable contribution carry-forwards cre-
ated in connection with the formation of The Provident 
Bank Foundation in early 2003. The reduction was a result 
of projected improvement in the Company’s ability to 
generate sufficient future taxable income to realize the 
deferred tax asset. 

 Analysis of Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the difference between 
income on interest-earning assets and expense on interest-
bearing liabilities. Net interest income depends on the 
relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities and the interest rates earned on such 
assets and paid on such liabilities.



management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations  (continued)

Provident Financial Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  Page 14



Average Balance Sheet

The following table sets forth certain information for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. For the peri-
ods indicated, the total dollar amount of interest income from average interest-earning assets and the resultant yields, 
as well as the interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities, is expressed both in dollars and rates. No tax 
equivalent adjustments were made. Average balances are daily averages. 

For the Year Ended December 31,
2004    2003   2002   

(Dollars in thousands)

Average 
Outstanding 

Balance  

Interest 
Earned/

Paid  

Average 
Yield/ 
Rate  

Average 
Outstanding 

Balance  

Interest 
Earned/ 

Paid  

Average 
Yield/ 
Rate  

Average 
Outstanding 

Balance  

Interest 
Earned/

Paid  

Average 
Yield/ 
Rate

Interest-earning assets:
 Federal funds sold and  
  short-term investments $ 87,635 $ 1,001 1.14% $ 157,854 $ 1,709 1.08% $ 93,572 $ 1,565 1.67%
 Investment securities (1) 484,583 19,183 3.96 461,742 17,708 3.84 114,878 5,323 4.63
 Securities available for sale 1,253,570 45,968 3.67 1,196,435 40,880 3.42 707,629 35,910 5.07
 Federal Home Loan Bank Stock  41,261  707 1.71  26,030  759 2.92  11,823  555 4.69
 Net loans (2) 2,906,982  162,684 5.60 2,014,861  123,450 6.13 1,949,778  133,954 6.87

  Total interest-earning assets 4,774,031 229,543 4.81 3,856,922 184,506 4.78 2,877,680 177,307  6.16 

 Non-interest earning assets 541,829 260,205 196,875   

  Total assets $ 5,315,860 $ 4,117,127 $ 3,074,555 

Interest-bearing liabilities:
 Savings deposits $ 1,254,758 11,011 0.88% $ 952,776 11,839 1.24% $ 823,752 14,459 1.76%
 Demand deposits 541,120 4,274 0.79 413,582 3,590 0.87 356,998 4,897 1.36
 Time deposits  1,156,388 24,221 2.09  988,789 23,742 2.40 1,069,183 35,481 3.32
 Borrowings 956,922  27,679 2.89 567,732  15,462 2.72 204,988  8,404 4.10

 Total interest-bearing liabilities 3,909,188 67,185  1.72 2,922,879 54,633  1.87 2,454,921 63,241  2.57  

 Non-interest-bearing liabilities 431,709 381,796 314,671 

 Total liabilities 4,340,897 3,304,675 2,769,592 

 Stockholders’ equity 974,963 812,452 304,963 

  Total liabilities and  
stockholders’ equity $ 5,315,860 $ 4,117,127 $ 3,074,555 

 Net interest income $162,358 $129,873 $ 114,066

 Net interest rate spread 3.09% 2.91% 3.59%

 Net interest earning assets $ 864,843 $ 934,043 $ 422,759 

 Net interest margin (3) 3.40% 3.37% 3.96%

Ratio of interest-earning assets  
to total interest-bearing  
liabilities 1.22x 1.32x 1.17x

(1) Average outstanding balance amounts shown are amortized cost.

(2)  Average outstanding balances shown net of the allowance for loan losses, deferred loan fees and expenses, and loan premiums and discounts and 

include non-accrual loans.

(3) Net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in the volume of interest-earning 
assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected interest income and interest expense during the periods indicated. 
Information is provided in each category with respect to: (i) changes attributable to changes in volume (changes in 
volume multiplied by prior rate); (ii) changes attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); 
and (iii) the net change. The changes attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate have been allocated  
proportionately to the changes due to volume and the changes due to rate.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 vs. 2003   2003 vs. 2002  

Increase/(Decrease) 
Due to

Total 
Increase/ 

(Decrease)

Increase/(Decrease) 
Due to

Total 
Increase/ 
(Decrease)(In thousands) Volume  Rate    Volume  Rate   

Interest-earning assets:
 Federal funds sold and short-term investments $ (797) $ 89 $ (708) $ 824 $ (680) $ 144
 Investment securities 893 582 1,475 13,452 (1,067) 12,385
 Securities available for sale 2,009 3,079 5,088 19,304 (14,334) 4,970
 Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 337 (389) (52) 475 (271) 204
 Loans 50,700 (11,466)  39,234  4,357 (14,861) (10,504)

  Total interest-earning assets 53,142 (8,105)  45,037  38,412 (31,213) 7,199 

Interest-bearing liabilities:
 Savings deposits 3,180 (4,008) (828) 2,034 (4,654) (2,620)
 Money market deposits 289 334 623 221 (613) (392)
 Interest-bearing checking deposits 680 (619) 61 463 (1,378) (915)
 Time deposits 3,731 (3,252) 479 (2,510) (9,229) (11,739)
 Borrowings 11,203 1,014   12,217  10,675 (3,617) 7,058 

  Total interest-bearing liabilities 19,083 (6,531)  12,552  10,883 (19,491) (8,608)

Net interest income $ 34,059 $ (1,574)  $ 32,485  $ 27,529 $ (11,722) $ 15,807 

 Comparison of Financial Condition at 
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003

Total assets grew to $6.43 billion at December 31, 2004, 
compared to $4.28 billion at December 31, 2003, with the 
increase primarily due to the First Sentinel acquisition 
and internal growth in the Company’s loan portfolio.  
The fair value of assets acquired in the First Sentinel 
transaction totaled $2.58 billion at July 14, 2004, the date 
of the acquisition, while deposits and borrowings assumed 
totaled $1.36 billion and $566.5 million, respectively. 

Total loans at December 31, 2004 were $3.71 billion, com-
pared to $2.24 billion at December 31, 2003. The increase 
in loans was attributable to loans acquired from First 
Sentinel totaling $1.20 billion, as well as internal loan  
growth of $266.7 million. Residential mortgage loans 
increased $821.8 million to $1.87 billion at December 31, 
2004, compared to $1.04 billion at December 31, 2003. 
Residential mortgage loan originations totaled $141.3  
million and one- to four-family loans purchased totaled 
$322.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. 
Principal repayments on residential mortgage loans 
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totaled $276.4 million, and loans sold totaled $86.7 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2004. Commercial 
real estate loans increased $236.2 million to $685.3 mil-
lion at December 31, 2004, compared to $449.1 million  
at December 31, 2003. Multi-family loans decreased $4.3 
million to $86.3 million at December 31, 2004, compared 
to $90.6 million at December 31, 2003. Construction loans 
increased $89.8 million to $188.9 million at December 31, 
2004, compared to $99.1 million at December 31, 2003. 
Commercial loans increased $107.0 million to $353.6  
million at December 31, 2004, compared to $246.6 million 
at December 31, 2003. The Company had no mortgage 
warehouse loans at December 31, 2004, compared to $4.1 
million at December 31, 2003. Consumer loans increased 
$213.5 million to $514.3 million at December 31, 2004, 
compared to $300.8 million at December 31, 2003. Retail 
loans, which consist of one- to four-family residential 
mortgages and consumer loans, such as fixed-rate home 
equity loans and lines of credit, totaled $2.38 billion and 
accounted for 64.4% of the loan portfolio at December 31, 
2004, compared to $1.35 billion, or 60.2%, of the portfolio 
at December 31, 2003. The increase in retail loans as a 
percentage of the total loan portfolio was largely the 
result of the acquisition of First Sentinel’s more heavily 
retail-weighted loan portfolio. The Company intends to 
rebalance the loan portfolio over time, consistent with  
its strategy towards a more commercial mix. Commercial 
loans, consisting of commercial real estate, multi-family, 
construction and commercial loans, totaled $1.31 billion, 
accounting for 35.6% of the loan portfolio at December 31, 
2004, compared to $889.5 million, or 39.8%, at December 
31, 2003.

The allowance for loan losses increased $13.1 million at 
December 31, 2004, as a result of the addition of $12.9 mil-
lion from the First Sentinel acquisition and provisions for 
loan losses of $3.6 million, partially offset by net charge-
offs of $3.4 million. Non-performing loans totaled $6.2 
million at December 31, 2004, compared to $6.1 million  
at December 31, 2003. Non-performing loans as a percent-
age of total loans were 0.17% at December 31, 2004 and 
0.27% at December 31, 2003. The allowance for loan losses 
as a percentage of non-performing loans was 545.1% at  

December 31, 2004, and 336.7% at December 31, 2003.  
The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total 
loans was 0.91% at December 31, 2004, and 0.92% at 
December 31, 2003.

Intangible assets grew $419.2 million to $443.1 million at 
December 31, 2004, from $23.9 million at December 31, 2003, 
as a result of the goodwill and core deposit intangible 
recorded in connection with the First Sentinel acquisition. 
At December 31, 2004, the goodwill and the core deposit 
intangible related to the First Sentinel acquisition totaled 
$390.2 million and $29.8 million, respectively. The core 
deposit intangible is being amortized on an accelerated 
basis over 8.8 years. The Company performs periodic 
impairment testing of intangible assets. There was no 
impairment recognized in 2004.

Excluding $739.8 million of investments acquired through 
the First Sentinel acquisition, total investments decreased 
$557.5 million, or 33.4%, during the year ended December 31, 
2004. Proceeds from investment sales, maturities and sched-
uled cash flows were used to fund loan growth and the 
cash portion of the First Sentinel acquisition consideration.

Bank-owned life insurance (“BOLI”) increased $34.4 mil-
lion to $105.9 million at December 31, 2004, compared to 
$71.5 million at December 31, 2003. The increase was due 
to the acquisition of First Sentinel’s BOLI totaling $29.9 
million and appreciation in the cash surrender value.

Other assets increased $29.2 million to $58.2 million at 
December 31, 2004, from $29.0 million at December 31, 2003. 
The increase was primarily due to the First Sentinel acqui-
sition and related current and deferred income tax balances.

Banking premises and equipment increased $17.9 million 
to $64.6 million at December 31, 2004, from $46.7 million 
at December 31, 2003. The increase was primarily due to 
the addition of 22 full-service branch offices from the 
First Sentinel acquisition.

Total deposits increased $1.35 billion to $4.05 billion at 
December 31, 2004, from $2.70 billion at December 31, 2003. 
Deposit liabilities assumed through the First Sentinel 
acquisition totaled $1.36 billion. At December 31, 2004, 
core deposits represented 65.6% of total deposits, compared 
with 65.4% at December 31, 2003.
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Total borrowed funds increased $456.8 million to $1.19 
billion at December 31, 2004, from $736.3 million at 
December 31, 2003. The increase was a result of liabilities 
assumed through the First Sentinel acquisition totaling 
$566.5 million, partially offset by net payments of $109.7 
million. In addition, the Company assumed subordinated 
debentures that were issued by First Sentinel in connec-
tion with the issuance of preferred capital securities  
in 2001. These debentures totaled $27.1 million at 
December 31, 2004. 

Total stockholders’ equity increased $319.7 million to 
$1.14 billion at December 31, 2004, from $817.1 million at 
December 31, 2003. This increase was a result of the net 
issuance of $350.5 million of common stock in connection 
with the First Sentinel acquisition, comprehensive income 
of $46.7 million and amortization of stock-based compen-
sation plans of $11.8 million, partially offset by common 
stock repurchases of $74.5 million and cash dividends of 
$14.9 million. 

 Comparison of Operating Results for the 
Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 
December 31, 2003

General

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2004 was 
$49.3 million, compared to net income of $18.7 million  
for the year ended December 31, 2003. Return on average 
assets for the year ended December 31, 2004 was 0.93%, 
compared to 0.46% for 2003. Return on average equity 
was 5.06% for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared 
to 2.31% for 2003. Basic and diluted earnings per share 
were $0.80 for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared 
to $0.31 for 2003, which included the results of operations 
from January 15, 2003, the date of the Bank’s stock con-
version. Earnings and per share data for 2004 reflected 
the impact of the Company’s acquisition of First Sentinel 
from July 14, 2004, the date the acquisition was com-
pleted. One-time expenses totaling $1.2 million, net  
of tax, related to the merger and integration of First 
Sentinel’s operations were recognized in 2004. Net income 
for 2003 was impacted by the one-time expense associated 
with the $15.6 million contribution, net of tax, to The 
Provident Bank Foundation.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income increased $32.5 million, or 25.0%, to 
$162.4 million for 2004, from $129.9 million for 2003.  
The average interest rate spread increased 18 basis points 
to 3.09% for 2004, from 2.91% for 2003. The net interest 
margin increased three basis points to 3.40% for 2004, 
compared to 3.37% for 2003. 

Interest income increased $45.0 million, or 24.4%, to $229.5 
million for 2004, compared to $184.5 million for 2003. The 
increase in interest income was primarily attributable to 
increased earning asset volume as a result of the First 
Sentinel acquisition. Average interest-earning assets 
increased $917.1 million, or 23.8%, to $4.77 billion for 2004, 
compared to $3.86 billion for 2003. Average outstanding 
loan balances increased $892.1 million, or 44.3%, to $2.91 
billion for 2004, from $2.01 billion for 2003. The average 
balance of investment securities increased $22.8 million, 
or 4.9%, to $484.6 million for 2004, compared to $461.7 
million for 2003. The average balance of securities avail-
able for sale increased $57.1 million, or 4.8%, to $1.25 bil-
lion for 2004, compared to $1.20 billion for 2003. Partially 
offsetting these increases, average federal funds sold and 
short-term investment balances decreased $70.2 million, 
or 44.5%, to $87.6 million for 2004, from $157.9 million for 
2003. The yield on interest-earning assets increased three 
basis points to 4.81% for 2004, from 4.78% for 2003. 

Interest expense increased $12.6 million, or 23.0%, to  
$67.2 million for 2004, from $54.6 million for 2003. The 
increase in interest expense was attributable to increased 
interest-bearing liability volume as a result of the First 
Sentinel acquisition, partially offset by reductions in 
the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities for 2004 
compared with 2003. The average balance of interest-
bearing liabilities increased $986.3 million, or 33.7%, to 
$3.91 billion for 2004, compared to $2.92 billion for 2003. 
Rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities decreased 15 
basis points to 1.72% for 2004, from 1.87% for 2003. Aver-
age interest-bearing deposits increased $597.1 million,  
or 25.4%, to $2.95 billion for 2004, from $2.36 billion for 
2003. The average rate paid on interest-bearing deposits 
declined 32 basis points to 1.34% for 2004, from 1.66% for 
2003. Average interest-bearing core deposits increased 
$429.5 million, or 31.4%, for 2004, compared with 2003,  
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while average time deposits increased $167.6 million, or 
16.9%, for 2004, compared with 2003. Average outstand-
ing borrowings, including subordinated debentures, 
increased $389.2 million, or 68.6%, to $956.2 million for 
2004, compared with $567.7 million for 2003. The average 
rate paid on borrowings increased to 2.89% for 2004, from 
2.72% for 2003.

Provision for Loan Losses

Provisions for loan losses are charged to operations in 
order to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level 
management considers necessary to absorb credit losses 
inherent in the loan portfolio. In determining the level  
of the allowance for loan losses, management considers 
past and current loss experience, evaluations of real estate 
collateral, current economic conditions, volume and type 
of lending, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s 
ability to repay the loan and the levels of non-performing 
and other classified loans. The amount of the allowance  
is based on estimates and the ultimate losses may vary 
from such estimates as more information becomes avail-
able or later events change. Management assesses the 
allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis and makes 
provisions for loan losses in order to maintain the adequacy 
of the allowance. The Company’s emphasis on continued 
diversification of the loan portfolio through the origina-
tion of construction loans, commercial mortgage loans 
and commercial loans has been one of the more significant 
factors management takes into account in evaluating the 
allowance for loan losses and provision for loan losses. In 
the event the Company further increases the amount of 
such types of loans in the portfolio, it may be determined 
that additional or increased provisions for loan losses are 
necessary, which could adversely affect earnings. 

The provision for loan losses was $3.6 million in 2004, 
compared to $1.2 million in 2003. The increase in the  
provision for loan losses was attributable to loan growth 
and an increase in net charge-offs compared with 2003. 
Net charge-offs for 2004 were $3.4 million compared to 
$1.5 million for 2003. Total charge-offs for the year ended 
December 31, 2004 were $6.4 million, compared to $4.4 
million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Recoveries 
for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $3.0 million,  

compared to $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 
2003. The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2004 
was $33.8 million, or 0.91% of total loans compared to 
$20.6 million, or 0.92% of total loans at December 31, 2003. 
At December 31, 2004, the allowance for loan losses as a 
percentage of non-performing loans was 545.1%, com-
pared to 336.7% at December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2004, non-performing loans as a percent-
age of total loans were 0.17%, compared to 0.27% at 
December 31, 2003. Non-performing assets as a percentage 
of total assets were 0.10% at December 31, 2004, compared 
to 0.14% at December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2004, non-
performing loans were $6.2 million, compared to $6.1 at 
December 31, 2003, and non-performing assets were $6.3 
million at December 31, 2004, compared to $6.2 million at 
December 31, 2003.

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income increased $5.3 million, or 22.3%, 
to $29.2 million for 2004, compared to $23.8 million for 
2003. Fee income from deposit accounts increased $4.1 
million, or 25.0%, to $20.4 million for 2004, from $16.3 
million for 2003. This increase was primarily attributable 
to fees earned on an overdraft privilege service introduced 
in late 2003 and growth in core deposit accounts. Income 
from the appreciation in the cash surrender value of BOLI 
increased $630,000, or 16.4%, as a result of $29.9 million  
of BOLI added through the First Sentinel acquisition and 
an additional $20.0 million of BOLI purchased by the 
Company in the first quarter of 2003. Gains on the sales 
of securities totaled $1.3 million for 2004, compared with 
$1.1 million in 2003. Securities sales are dependent upon 
interest rate risk and cash flow requirements, market con-
ditions, and projections of future price performance and 
interest rate movements. Commissions on sales of mutual 
funds and annuities increased $170,000, or 60.7%, to 
$450,000 for 2004, from $280,000 for 2003. In late 2003, the 
Company outsourced the sales and operations of its non-
deposit investment subsidiary to its third-party provider. 
Other income increased $239,000, or 10.5% to $2.5 million 
in 2004, compared to $2.3 million in 2003. Other income 
consisted of net gains on the sale of loans, net gains on 
sales of other assets and other non-recurring income. 
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Non-Interest Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2004, non-interest expense 
decreased $7.4 million, or 5.9%, to $119.3 million, compared 
to $126.8 million for 2003. The decrease in non-interest 
expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was due to 
the one-time expense associated with the $24.0 million 
contribution to The Provident Bank Foundation that was 
recorded in the first quarter of 2003, partially offset by 
increases in other non-interest expense categories. 
Compensation and benefits expense increased $6.4 mil-
lion, or 11.7%, to $61.1 million for 2004, from $54.7 million 
for 2003. The increase in compensation and benefits 
expense for 2004 was primarily attributable an increase 
in salaries, incentives and related payroll taxes of $7.3 
million, which included merger-related charges of $182,000 
and other executive severance of $1.6 million. The remain-
ing increase in salaries and incentives was primarily 
attributable to increased staffing levels during the acqui-
sition integration period and in support of the additional 
22 branch locations acquired from First Sentinel. Expenses 
related to stock-based compensation and benefit plans 
increased $5.4 million for 2004, compared with 2003, as 
those plans were implemented in mid-2003. Expenses related 
to other employee benefits, consisting of the Company’s 
defined benefit pension plan and post-retirement health 
care plan, decreased $3.6 million for 2004, compared with 
2003. The pension plan was frozen as of April 1, 2003. 
Commissions decreased $1.5 million for 2004, compared 
with 2003, largely as a result of historically high mortgage 
origination volume in 2003. In addition, salaries and  
commissions related to the Company’s mortgage banking 
subsidiary decreased $827,000 in 2004 compared with 
2003. The Company discontinued the operations of its 
mortgage banking subsidiary in February 2004.

Net occupancy expense increased $2.9 million, or 20.1% 
for 2004, compared with 2003, primarily as a result of the 
additional 22 branch locations added through the First 
Sentinel acquisition, as well as two de novo branches opened 
in each of the years 2004 and 2003, and the acquisition of 
three branches with deposits from another depository 
institution in 2003.

Advertising and promotions expense increased $2.2  
million, or 58.3% for 2004, compared with 2003, as a 
result of customer communications associated with the 
integration of First Sentinel, as well as increased market-
ing efforts in support of the Company’s focus on loan 
and core deposit generation.

Data processing expense increased $1.6 million, or 24.4% 
for 2004, compared with 2003, reflecting the First Sentinel 
acquisition and related growth in customer relationships.

Amortization of intangibles increased $1.6 million, or 
42.4% for 2004, compared with 2003, mainly as a result  
of the amortization of the core deposit intangible recorded 
in connection with the First Sentinel acquisition.

Other operating expenses increased $1.8 million, or 9.5% 
for 2004, compared with 2003. This increase was primarily 
due to increases in printing and supplies expense, regula-
tory examination and audit fees, ATM card maintenance 
costs, consulting fees and corporate insurance expense. 
The increases in other operating expenses were largely 
attributable to the First Sentinel acquisition and integration 
and resulting growth in customer relationships. In addi-
tion, compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
added approximately $623,000 to the Company’s audit 
and consulting expenses.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased $12.3 million, to $19.3 mil-
lion, on net income before taxes of $68.6 million result-
ing in an effective tax rate of 28.1% in 2004, compared to 
income tax expense of $7.0 million on net income before 
taxes of $25.8 million in 2003 resulting in an effective tax 
rate of 27.3%. In 2004, the Company reduced a valuation 
allowance pertaining to charitable contribution carry- 
forwards created in connection with the formation of  
The Provident Bank Foundation in early 2003. The reduc-
tion in valuation allowance resulted in a decrease in 2004 
income tax expense of $1.9 million. The reduction in the 
valuation allowance was attributable to projected improve-
ment in the Company’s ability to generate sufficient future 
taxable income to realize the deferred tax asset. This 
improvement in the Company’s future earnings outlook 
was largely due to the successful acquisition and integra-
tion of First Sentinel.
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 Comparison of Operating Results for the 
Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 
December 31, 2002

General

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2003 was 
$18.7 million, a decrease of $7.8 million, or 29.5%, com-
pared to net income of $26.6 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2002. Return on average assets for the year 
ended December 31, 2003 was 0.46%, compared to 0.86% 
for the year ended December 31, 2002. Return on average 
equity was 2.31% for the year ended December 31, 2003, 
compared to 8.71% for the year ended December 31, 2002. 
Basic and diluted earnings per share were $0.31 for the 
year ended December 31, 2003, which included the results 
of operations from January 15, 2003, the date of the Bank’s 
stock conversion. 

Net Interest Income

Net interest income increased $15.8 million, or 13.9%,  
to $129.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, 
from $114.1 million for 2002. Average interest rate spread 
decreased 68 basis points to 2.91% for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, from 3.59% for 2002. The net interest 
margin decreased 59 basis points to 3.37% for the year 
ended December 31, 2003, compared to 3.96% for 2002. 
The decrease in net interest margin was primarily due  
to a decrease in the yield on earnings assets of 138 basis 
points, as cash flows from loans and securities were  
reinvested at significantly lower interest rates.

Interest income increased $7.2 million, or 4.1%, to $184.5 
million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared 
to $177.3 million for 2002. Average interest earning assets 
increased $979.2 million, or 34.0%, to $3.86 billion in 2003, 
compared to $2.88 billion in 2002. Average outstanding 
loan balances increased $65.1 million, or 3.3%, to $2.01 
billion for the year ended December 31, 2003, from $1.95 
billion for 2002. The average balance of investment securi-
ties increased $346.9 million, or 301.9%, to $461.7 million 
in 2003, compared to $114.9 million in 2002. The average 
balance of securities available for sale increased $488.8 
million, or 69.1%, to $1.20 billion for the year ended  

December 31, 2003, compared to $707.6 million for 2002. 
Average federal funds sold and short-term investment 
balances increased $64.3 million, or 68.7%, to $157.9  
million in 2003, from $93.6 million in 2002. The yield on 
interest earning assets decreased 138 basis points to 4.78% 
in 2003, from 6.16% in 2002. Interest expense decreased 
$8.6 million, or 13.6%, to $54.6 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, from $63.2 million for 2002. The 
reduction in interest expense was attributable to the con-
tinued decline in short-term interest rates. The average 
balance of interest-bearing liabilities increased $468.0 
million, or 19.1%, to $2.92 billion for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, compared to $2.45 billion for 2002. 
The average balance of non-interest-bearing liabilities 
increased $67.1 million, or 21.3%, to $381.8 million in 2003, 
compared to $314.7 million in 2002. Rates paid on interest-
bearing liabilities decreased 71 basis points to 1.87% in 
2003, from 2.58% in 2002. Average outstanding borrow-
ings increased $362.7 million, or 177.0%, to $567.7 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to $205.0 
million for 2002. The average rate paid on borrowings 
decreased to 2.72% for the year ended December 31, 2003, 
from 4.10% for 2002.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $1.2 million in 2003, 
compared to $12.8 million in 2002. The increase in the 
2002 provision for loan losses was primarily attributable 
to an $11.8 million charge-off in the third quarter related 
to a mortgage warehouse loan. The allowance for loan 
losses at December 31, 2003 was $20.6 million or 0.92%  
of total loans, compared to $21.0 million or 1.02% of total 
loans at December 31, 2002. At December 31, 2003, the 
allowance for loan losses as a percentage of non-performing 
loans was 336.7%, compared to 246.6% at December 31, 2002.

Net charge-offs for 2003 were $1.5 million, compared to 
$13.7 million for 2002. Total charge-offs for the year ended 
December 31, 2003 were $4.4 million, compared to $14.9 
million for the year ended December 31, 2002. During 
2002, the Bank charged off $12.5 million related to a  
$20.6 million warehouse loan, resulting from an alleged 
fraud involving one of its mortgage warehouse borrowers.  
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Recoveries for the year ended December 31, 2003 were 
$2.9 million, compared to $1.2 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2003, non-performing loans as a percent-
age of total loans were 0.27%, compared to 0.41% at 
December 31, 2002. Non-performing assets as a percentage 
of total assets declined eight basis points to 0.14% at 
December 31, 2003, compared to 0.22% at December 31, 2002. 
At December 31, 2003, non-performing loans were $6.1 
million, compared to $8.5 million at December 31, 2002, and 
non-performing assets were $6.2 million at December 31, 
2003, compared to $8.5 million at December 31, 2002.

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income decreased $313,000, or 1.3%,  
to $23.8 million at December 31, 2003, compared to $24.1 
million at December 31, 2002. Fee income from deposit 
accounts increased $1.2 million, or 7.8%, to $16.3 million 
at December 31, 2003, from $15.1 million at December 31, 
2002. This increase was attributable to the Bank’s ongoing 
strategy to attract and retain core deposit accounts. Other 
income decreased $1.7 million, or 43.0%, to $2.3 million 
in 2003, compared to $4.0 million in 2002. Other income 
consists of net gain on the sale of loans, net gain on sales 
of other assets and other non-recurring income. The net 
gain on the sale of fixed-rate mortgages decreased $997,000, 
or 44.7%, to $1.2 million in 2003, from $2.2 million in 2002, 
and the net gain on other assets decreased $710,000, or 
40.8%, to $1.0 million in 2003, from $1.7 million in 2002.

Non-Interest Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2003, non-interest 
expense increased $37.7 million, or 42.3%, to $126.8 mil-
lion at December 31, 2003, compared to $89.1 million at 
December 31, 2002. The increase in non-interest expense 
for the year ended December 31, 2003, was primarily  
due to the one-time expense associated with the $24.0 
million contribution to The Provident Bank Foundation 
that was recorded in the first quarter of 2003 and benefit 
expenses related to stock-based plans. Compensation and 
benefits expense increased $7.8 million, or 16.7%, in 2003 
to $54.7 million, from $46.9 million in 2002. The increase  

in compensation and benefits expense for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, was primarily attributable to expenses 
related to new stock-based benefit plans: the ESOP in the 
amount of $2.7 million, the stock award plan in the amount 
of $1.9 million and the stock option plan in the amount of 
$1.7 million. For the year ended December 31, 2003, other 
non-interest expenses increased $3.6 million, or 22.6%, to 
$19.4 million, compared to $15.8 million for 2002. This 
increase was primarily due to an increase of $1.5 million, 
or 201.9%, in corporate insurance expense, $775,000, or 
25.8%, in advertising and promotions and $940,000, or 7.1%, 
in occupancy expense.

As of December 31, 2003, the Bank had unamortized good-
will in the amount of $20.0 million as a result of the acqui-
sition of financial institutions for which the amortization 
ceased upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142. During 2002,  
the Bank determined that the carrying amount of the 
$519,000 of goodwill related to the acquisition of the mort-
gage company was impaired, and recognized the impair-
ment as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting 
principle in accordance with the transitional provisions  
of SFAS No. 142.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased $2.2 million, or 23.9%, to 
$7.0 million on net income before taxes of $25.8 million, 
resulting in an effective tax rate of 27.3% in 2003, compared 
to income tax expense of $9.2 million on net income 
before taxes of $36.3 million in 2002, resulting in an effec-
tive tax rate of 25.4%. The decrease in income tax expense 
was primarily attributable to an increase of $118.0 million, 
or 125.2%, in tax exempt securities and an increase of 
$978,000, or 34.1%, in the cash surrender value of BOLI.

 Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity refers to the Company’s ability to generate  
adequate amounts of cash to meet financial obligations  
to its depositors, to fund loans and securities purchases, 
deposit outflows and operating expenses. Sources of 
funds include scheduled amortization of loans, loan  
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prepayments, scheduled maturities of investments, cash 
flows from mortgage-backed securities and the ability  
to borrow funds from the Federal Home Loan Bank of 
New York and approved broker dealers. The Bank has a 
$50.0 million overnight line of credit and a $50.0 million 
one-month overnight repricing line of credit with the 
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York. As of December 31, 
2004, there were no outstanding borrowings against these 
lines of credit.

Cash flows from loan payments and maturing investment 
securities are a fairly predictable source of funds. Changes 
in interest rates, local economic conditions and the com-
petitive marketplace can influence loan prepayments, 
prepayments on mortgage-backed securities and deposit 
flows. For the year ended December 31, 2004, loan repay-
ments, excluding mortgage warehouse activity, totaled 
$937.9 million compared to $835.6 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2003.

One- to four-family residential loans, consumer loans, 
commercial real estate loans, multi-family loans and  
commercial and small business loans are the primary 
investments of the Company. Purchasing securities for 
the investment portfolio is a secondary use of funds  
and the investment portfolio is structured to complement 
and facilitate the Company’s lending activities and 
ensure adequate liquidity. Loan originations and pur-
chases, excluding mortgage warehouse loans, totaled 
$1.29 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004, com-
pared to $1.31 billion for the year ended December 31, 
2003. Purchases for the investment portfolio totaled 
$301.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, 
compared to $1.70 billion for the year ended December 31, 
2003. The large volume of securities purchases in 2003 
was primarily attributable to the need to invest proceeds 

from the Company’s common stock offering and rapid 
turnover in the Company’s securities portfolio resulting 
from the historically low interest rate environment.

At December 31, 2004, the Bank had outstanding loan 
commitments to borrowers of $424.8 million. Undisbursed 
home equity lines and personal credit lines were $174.5 
million at December 31, 2004. Excluding deposits assumed 
through the First Sentinel acquisition, total deposits 
decreased $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 
2004. Deposit inflows are affected by changes in interest 
rates, competitive pricing and product offerings in our 
marketplace, local economic conditions and other factors 
such as stock market volatility. Certificate of deposit 
accounts that are scheduled to mature within one year 
totaled $960.0 million at December 31, 2004. Based on 
current pricing strategy and customer retention experi-
ence, the Bank expects to retain a significant share of 
these accounts. The Bank manages liquidity on a daily 
basis and expects to have sufficient funds to meet all  
of its funding requirements.

As of December 31, 2004, the Bank exceeded all regulatory 
capital requirements. At December 31, 2004, the Bank’s 
leverage (Tier 1) capital ratio was 8.33%. FDIC regulations 
currently require banks to maintain a minimum leverage 
ratio of Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets of 4.00%.  
At December 31, 2004, the Bank’s total risk-based capital 
ratio was 14.21%. Under current regulations, the mini-
mum required ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets 
is 8.00%. A bank is considered to be well-capitalized if it 
has a leverage (Tier 1) capital ratio of at least 5.00% and a 
risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.00%. As of December 
31, 2004, the Bank exceeded the well-capitalized capital 
requirements. 
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 Off-Balance Sheet and Contractual Obligations

Off-balance sheet and contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004, are summarized below:

Off-Balance Sheet and Contractual Obligations Payments Due by Period

(In thousands) Total  
Less Than 

1 Year  
1–3 

Years  
3–5 

Years  

More 
Than 5 
Years

Off-Balance Sheet:      
Long-term commitments $ 591,429 $ 591,429 $ — $ — $ —
Letters of credit 7,897  7,897  —  —  —

Total Off-Balance Sheet 599,326 599,326 — — —
 
Contractual Obligations:
Operating leases 47,728 2,931 5,984 5,771 33,042
Certificate of deposits 1,395,195  959,962  263,496  135,932  35,805

Total Contractual Obligations 1,442,923  962,893  269,480  141,703  68,847

Total $ 2,042,249  $ 1,562,219  $ 269,480  $ 141,703  $ 68,847

Off-balance sheet commitments consist of unused com-
mitments to borrowers for term loans, unused lines of 
credit and outstanding letters of credit. Total off-balance 
sheet obligations were $599.3 million at December 31, 
2004, an increase of $202.5 million or 51.0% from $396.9 
million at December 31, 2003. The increase in off-balance 
sheet commitments was primarily due to the First 
Sentinel acquisition.

Contractual obligations consist of operating leases and 
certificate of deposit liabilities at December 31, 2004. There 
were no securities purchases that were entered into in 
December 2004 that would have settled in January 2005. 
At December 31, 2003, there were $2.4 million in securities 

purchase obligations. Total contractual obligations at 
December 31, 2004 were $1.44 billion, an increase of 
$473.3 million, or 48.8%, compared to $969.6 million at 
December 31, 2003. Operating leases increased $4.2 mil-
lion, or 40.3%, to $47.7 at December 31, 2004, compared  
to $34.0 million at December 31, 2003, and certificate of 
deposit accounts increased $462.1 million, or 49.5%, to 
$1.40 billion at December 31, 2004, from $933.1 million at 
December 31, 2003. The increases in operating leases and 
increases in certificate of deposit accounts were primarily 
due to the additional branches and deposits that were 
included in the First Sentinel acquisition.
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December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands, except share data) 2004 2003 

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 121,187 $ 106,228
Federal funds sold 16,000 —
Short-term investments 26,507 69,624 

    Total cash and cash equivalents 163,694 175,852 

Investment securities (market value of $450,071 and $524,429  
 at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively) 445,633 517,789
Securities available for sale, at fair value 1,406,340 1,151,829
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 48,283 34,585
Loans 3,707,211 2,237,367
 Less allowance for loan losses 33,766 20,631 

    Net loans 3,673,445 2,216,736 

Foreclosed assets, net 140 41
Banking premises and equipment, net 64,605 46,741
Accrued interest receivable 23,865 16,842
Intangible assets 443,148 23,938
Bank-owned life insurance 105,932 71,506
Other assets 58,237 29,019  

    Total assets $ 6,433,322 $ 4,284,878 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits:
 Demand deposits $ 1,116,812 $ 774,988
 Savings deposits 1,538,466 987,877
 Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 253,024 148,306
 Other time deposits 1,142,171 784,805 

    Total deposits 4,050,473 2,695,976
Mortgage escrow deposits 15,389 11,061
Borrowed funds 1,166,064 736,328
Subordinated debentures 27,113 —
Other liabilities 37,507 24,394 

    Total liabilities 5,296,546 3,467,759 

Stockholders’ Equity:
 Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, none issued — —
 Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 79,879,017 shares 
  issued and 74,078,784 shares outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 61,538,300  
  shares issued and 60,600,100 shares outstanding at December 31, 2003, respectively 799 615
 Additional paid-in capital 960,792 606,541
 Retained earnings 358,678 324,250
 Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,767 6,416
 Treasury stock (70,810) —
 Unallocated common stock held by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (76,101) (78,816)
 Common stock acquired by the Stock Award Plan (40,349) (41,887)
 Common stock acquired by the Directors’ Deferred Fee Plan (13,379) —
 Deferred compensation—Directors’ Deferred Fee Plan 13,379 — 

    Total stockholders’ equity 1,136,776 817,119  

    Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 6,433,322 $ 4,284,878 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

consolidated statements of financial condition
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Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002 

Interest income:
 Real estate secured loans $121,291 $ 84,307 $ 93,893
 Commercial loans 18,309 20,711 18,894
 Consumer loans 23,084 18,432 21,167
 Investment securities 19,183 17,708 5,323
 Securities available for sale 46,675 41,639 36,465
 Other short-term investments 480 463 281
 Federal funds 521 1,246 1,284 

  Total interest income 229,543 184,506 177,307 

Interest expense:
 Deposits 39,506 39,171 54,837
 Borrowed funds 27,107 15,462 8,404
 Subordinated debentures 572 — — 

  Total interest expense 67,185 54,633 63,241 

    Net interest income 162,358 129,873 114,066
Provision for loan losses 3,600 1,160 12,800 

    Net interest income after provision for loan losses 158,758 128,713 101,266 

Non-interest income:
 Fees 20,409 16,325 15,144
 Bank-owned life insurance 4,477 3,847 2,869
 Net gain on securities transactions 1,310 1,116 960
 Other income 2,955 2,546 5,174 

  Total non-interest income 29,151 23,834 24,147 

Non-interest expense:
 Compensation and employee benefits 61,098 54,683 46,862
 Net occupancy expense 17,008 14,157 13,220
 Data processing expense 8,234 6,618 6,080
 Advertising and promotion expense 5,969 3,770 3,003
 Amortization of intangibles 5,266 3,699 3,677
 Federal deposit insurance 503 440 417
 Other operating expenses 21,256 19,412 15,828
 Contribution to The Provident Bank Foundation — 24,000 — 

  Total non-interest expenses 119,334 126,779 89,087 

 Income before income tax expense and the  
  cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle $ 68,575 $ 25,768 $ 36,326
Income tax expense 19,274 7,024 9,231 

 Income before the cumulative effect of a change in 
  accounting principle 49,301 18,744 27,095
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax — — (519)

    Net income $ 49,301 $ 18,744 $ 26,576 

Basic earnings per share $   0.80 $   0.31
Average basic shares outstanding (from date of conversion) 61,576,544 57,835,726
Diluted earnings per share $   0.80 $   0.31
Average diluted shares outstanding (from date of conversion) 61,932,173 57,965,640

 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

consolidated statements of income
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 (Dollars in thousands)
Common 

Stock  
Additional 

Paid-In Capital  
Unallocated 
ESOP Shares 

 Common 
Stock 

Awards 
Under SAP  

Common Stock 
Acquired  
by DDFP  

Deferred 
Compensation 

DDFP  
Treasury 

Stock  
 Retained 
Earnings  

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income  

Total 
Stockholders’ 

Equity

Balance at December 31, 2001 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 287,535 $ 4,595 $ 292,130
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — — — 26,576 — 26,576
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized holding gains on securities arising during the period 
(net of tax of $5,401) — — — — — — — — 7,828 7,828

Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (net of tax of $362) — — — — — — — — (525)  (525) 

Total comprehensive income                                      $ 33,879  

Balance at December 31, 2002 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 314,111 $ 11,898 $ 326,009
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — — — 18,744 — 18,744
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized holding loss on securities arising during the period  
(net of tax of ($3,330)) — — — — — — — — (4,822) (4,822)

 Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (net of tax of $456) — — — — — — — — (660) (660) 

Total comprehensive income $ 13,262  

Sale of common stock 615 604,752 — — — — — — — 605,367
Cash dividends paid — — — — — — — (8,605) — (8,605)
Purchase of ESOP shares — — (81,489) — — — — — — (81,489)
Allocation of ESOP shares — 63 2,673 — — — — — — 2,736
Purchase of SAP shares — — — (43,768) — — — — — (43,768)
Allocation of SAP shares — 37 — 1,881 — — — — — 1,918
Allocation of stock options  —    1,689    —   —   —   —    —   —   —    1,689  

Balance at December 31, 2003 $615 $606,541 $(78,816) $(41,887) $ — $ — $ — $ 324,250 $ 6,416 $ 817,119
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — — — 49,301 — 49,301

Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized holding loss on securities arising during the period  

(net of tax of ($1,198)) — — — — — — — — (1,874) (1,874)

 Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (net of tax of $535) — — — — — — — — (775) (775) 

Total comprehensive income $ 46,652  

Cash dividends paid — — — — — — — (14,873) — (14,873)

Common stock issued in connection with the First Sentinel acquisition, net 184 350,357 — — — — — — — 350,541

DDFP acquired from First Sentinel — — — — (13,379) 13,379 — — — —

Purchases of treasury stock — — — — — — (70,909) — — (70,909)

Option exercises — — — — — — 99 — — 99

Allocation of ESOP shares — 311 2,715 — — — — — — 3,026

Purchase of SAP shares — — — (3,565) — — — — — (3,565)

Allocation of SAP shares — 94 — 5,103 — — — — — 5,197

Allocation of stock options  —    3,489    —   —    —    —    —   —   —    3,489  

Balance at December 31, 2004  $ 799    $960,792    $(76,101)   $(40,349)   $(13,379)   $ 13,379    $ (70,810)   $ 358,678   $ 3,767    $1,136,776  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity
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Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002 

Cash flows from operating activities:
 Net income $ 49,301 $ 18,744 $ 26,576
 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash  
  provided by operating activities:

  Contribution to The Provident Bank Foundation — 24,000 —
  Depreciation and amortization of intangibles 12,255 9,735 9,225
  Provision for loan losses 3,600 1,160 12,800
  Deferred tax benefit (5,269) (9,176) (1,537)
  Increase in cash surrender value of Bank-owned Life Insurance (4,477) (3,847) (2,869)
  Net amortization (accretion) of premiums and discount on securities 6,692 13,614 (380)
  Accretion of net deferred loan fees (1,551) (859) (713)
  Amortization of premiums on purchased loans 3,885 924 905
  Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned, net 74 1,793 299
  Allocation of ESOP shares 3,026 2,736 —
  Allocation of SAP 5,197 1,918 —
  Allocation of stock options 3,489 1,689 —
  Net gain on sale of loans (1,470) (1,235) (2,232)
  Net gain on securities available for sale (1,310) (1,116) (960)
  Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 2,233 (1,000) (511)
  Decrease (increase) in other assets 23,137 (14,290) (7,786)
  (Decrease) increase in mortgage escrow deposits (7,890) 1,479 (4,170)
  Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 2,910 7,192 (9,142)

   Net cash provided by operating activities 93,832 53,461 19,505 

Cash flows from investing activities:
 Proceeds from sale of loans 88,165 92,579 79,129 
 Proceeds from maturities, calls and paydowns of investment securities 82,630 134,636 31,635
 Purchases of investment securities (11,498) (438,196) (134,909)
 Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 316,633 86,809 1,041
 Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of securities available for sale 451,456 1,252,893 137,295
 Purchases of securities available for sale (289,783) (1,262,421) (871,822)
  Cash consideration paid to acquire First Sentinel, net of cash and cash  

 equivalents received (148,395) — —
 Purchase of Bank-owned Life Insurance — (20,000) —
 Net increase in loans (355,860) (279,236) (127,421)
 Purchases of premises and equipment, net (8,650) (8,770) (5,926)

   Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 124,698 (441,706) (890,978)

(Continued)

consolidated statements of cash flows 
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Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002 

Cash flows from financing activities:
 Net (decrease) increase in deposits $ (4,691) $ (547,358) $ 901,611
 Proceeds from sale of stock, net — 567,214 —
 Purchase of ESOP shares, net — (81,489) —
 Purchase of SAP shares, net  (3,565) (43,768) —
 Purchase of treasury stock (70,909) — —
 Cash dividends paid to stockholders (14,873) (8,605) —
 Stock options exercised 99 — —
 Proceeds from FHLB Advances 1,696,000 499,800 166,150
 Payments on FHLB Advances (1,837,404) (75,249) (43,700)
 Net increase (decrease) in Repurchase Agreements 4,655 (11,303) 4,864 

   Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (230,688) 299,242 1,028,925 

   Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (12,158) (89,003) 157,452
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 175,852 264,855 107,403 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 163,694 $ 175,852 $ 264,855 

Cash paid during the period for:
 Interest on deposits and borrowings $ 64,794 $ 54,633 $ 63,242 

 Income taxes $ 30,816 $ 15,779 $ 11,650 

Non cash investing activities:
 Transfer of loans receivable to other real estate owned $ 173 $ 1,834 $ 299 

 Transfer of conversion proceeds held in escrow  
  deposits to stockholders’ equity $ — $ 525,989 $ — 

 Common stock contributed to the Provident Bank Foundation $ — $ 19,200 $ — 

 Fair value of assets acquired $ 2,152,075 $ — $ — 

 Goodwill and core deposit intangible $ 423,217 $ — $ — 

 Liabilities assumed $ 1,972,888 $ — $ — 

 Common stock issued for First Sentinel acquisition $ 350,541 $ — $ — 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
of Provident Financial Services, Inc. (the “Company”), 
The Provident Bank (the “Bank”) and their wholly-owned 
subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Business

The Company, through the Bank, provides a full range  
of banking services to individual and corporate custom-
ers through branch offices in New Jersey. The Bank is 
subject to competition from other financial institutions 
and to the regulations of certain federal and state agen-
cies, and undergoes periodic examinations by those  
regulatory authorities.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company 
have been prepared in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, man-
agement is required to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
as of the dates of the consolidated statements of financial 
condition and revenues and expenses for the periods then 
ended. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to 
change in the near term relates to the determination of 
the allowance for loan losses. In connection with the 
determination of the allowance for loan losses, manage-
ment generally obtains independent appraisals for  
significant properties.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents include cash and due from banks, federal  
funds sold and commercial paper.

Securities

Securities include investment securities and securities 
available for sale. Securities that an entity has the positive 
intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as 
“investment securities” and reported at amortized cost. 
Securities to be held for indefinite periods of time and not 

intended to be held to maturity are classified as “securities 
available for sale” and are reported at fair value, with 
unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and 
reported as a separate component of equity, net of deferred 
taxes. Fair values are based on published or securities 
dealers’ market prices. Gains or losses on the sale of secu-
rities are based upon the specific identification method.

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York Stock

The Bank, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank 
of New York (“FHLB”), is required to hold shares of  
capital stock of the FHLB at cost based on a specified  
formula. The Bank carries this investment at cost, which 
approximates market value.

Loans

Mortgages on real estate and other loans are stated at the 
face amount of the loans. Unearned income on purchased 
residential mortgage loans is recognized in income based 
on the level yield method. Accrued interest on loans that 
are contractually 90 days or more past due or when  
collection of interest appears doubtful is reversed and 
charged against interest income. Income is subsequently 
recognized only to the extent cash payments are received 
and the principal balance is expected to be recovered. 
Such loans are restored to an accrual status only if the 
loan is brought contractually current and the borrower 
has demonstrated the ability to make future payments  
of principal and interest.

An impaired loan is defined as a loan for which it is 
probable, based on current information, that the lender 
will not collect amounts due under the contractual terms 
of the loan agreement. Impaired loans are individually 
assessed to determine that each loan’s carrying value is 
not in excess of the fair value of the related collateral or 
the present value of the expected future cash flows. 
Residential mortgage and consumer loans are deemed 
smaller balance homogeneous loans which are evaluated 
collectively for impairment and are therefore excluded 
from the population of impaired loans. 

Loan Origination and Commitment Fees and Related Costs

Loan fees and certain direct loan origination costs are 
deferred and the net fee or cost is recognized in interest 
income over the estimated lives of the specifically identi-
fied loans adjusted for prepayments.

notes to consolidated financial statements
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Allowance for Loan Losses

Losses on loans are charged to the allowance for loan 
losses. Additions to this allowance are made by recoveries 
of loans previously charged off and by a provision charged 
to expense. The determination of the balance of the 
allowance for loan losses is based on an analysis of the 
loan portfolio, economic conditions, historical loan loss 
experience and other factors that warrant recognition in 
providing for an adequate allowance.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses  
is adequate. While management uses available information 
to recognize losses on loans and real estate, future addi-
tions to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary 
based on changes in economic conditions in the Bank’s 
market area.

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral 
part of their examination process, periodically review the 
Bank’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require 
the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance or addi-
tional write-downs based on their judgments about infor-
mation available to them at the time of their examination.

Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of 
foreclosure are carried at fair value, less estimated costs 
to sell. Fair market value is generally based on recent 
appraisals. When an asset is acquired, the excess of the 
loan balance over fair value, less estimated costs to sell,  
is charged to the allowance for loan losses. A reserve for 
foreclosed assets may be established to provide for possi-
ble write-downs and selling costs that occur subsequent 
to foreclosure. Foreclosed assets are carried net of the 
related reserve. Operating results from real estate owned, 
including rental income, operating expenses, and gains 
and losses realized from the sales of real estate owned, 
are recorded as incurred.

Banking Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Banking premises, furniture, fix-
tures and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation, computed using the straight-line method 
based on their estimated useful lives (generally 25 to 40 
years for buildings and 3 to 5 years for furniture and 
equipment). Leasehold improvements, carried at cost,  
net of accumulated depreciation, are amortized over the 
terms of the leases or the estimated useful lives of the 

assets, whichever are shorter, using the straight-line 
method. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense 
as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of 
accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated 
future tax consequences attributable to differences 
between the financial statement carrying amounts of 
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax 
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which 
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered 
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities 
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the 
period that includes the enactment date.

Trust Department

Trust assets consisting of securities and other property 
(other than cash on deposit held by the Bank in fiduciary 
or agency capacities for customers of the Trust Department) 
are not included in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of condition because such properties are not assets 
of the Bank. 

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets of the Bank consist of goodwill, core 
deposit premiums, and mortgage servicing rights. 
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price  
over the estimated fair value of identifiable net assets 
acquired through purchase acquisitions. In accordance 
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(“SFAS”) No. 142, goodwill with an indefinite useful life 
is not amortized, but is evaluated for impairment on an 
annual basis.

Core deposit premiums represent the intangible value of 
depositor relationships assumed in purchase acquisitions 
and are amortized on accelerated and straight-line bases 
over periods of 8.8 and ten years. Mortgage servicing rights 
are recorded when purchased or originated mortgage 
loans are sold, with servicing rights retained. Mortgage 
servicing rights are amortized on an accelerated basis, 
adjusted for prepayments. Mortgage servicing rights are 
carried at fair value. The amortization of the core deposit 
premiums and mortgage servicing rights is recorded in 
other operating expenses.
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Bank-Owned Life Insurance

Bank-owned life insurance is accounted for using the cash 
surrender value method and is recorded at its realizable 
value. The change in the net asset value is included in 
other assets and other non-interest income.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Bank maintains a pension plan which covers sub-
stantially all employees. The Bank’s policy is to fund at 
least the minimum contribution required by the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. On April 1, 2003, 
the Bank pension plan was frozen.

The Bank has a savings incentive plan covering substan-
tially all employees of the Bank. The Bank may match  
a percentage of the first 6% contributed by participants. 
The Bank’s matching contribution, if any, is determined 
quarterly by the Board of Directors.

The employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”) is accounted 
for in accordance with the provisions of Statement of 
Position 93-6, “Employer Accounting for Employee Stock 
Ownership Plans.” The funds borrowed by the ESOP from 
the Company to purchase the Company’s common stock 
are being repaid from the Bank’s contributions and divi-
dends paid on unallocated ESOP shares over a period  
of up to 30 years. The Company’s common stock not  
allocated to participants is recorded as a reduction of 
stockholders’ equity at cost. Compensation expense for 
the ESOP is based on the average price of the Company’s 
stock during each quarter.

The Company’s stock option plan is accounted for in 
accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” The Stock Award Plan (“SAP”)  
is accounted for in accordance with the provisions of APB 
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” 
(“APB 25”), and related Interpretations. Accordingly, com-
pensation expense has been recognized for the stock 
option plan and SAP. Expense for the SAP in the amount 
of the fair value of the common stock at the date of grant 
is recognized ratably over the vesting period. Unvested  
and unallocated SAP shares are recorded as a reduction 
of stockholders’ equity at cost.

In connection with the First Sentinel acquisition, the 
Company assumed the First Savings Bank Directors’ 
Deferred Fee Plan (the “DDFP”). The DDFP was frozen 
prior to the acquisition. The Company recorded a deferred 
compensation equity instrument and corresponding  
contra-equity account for the value of the shares held by the 
DDFP at the July 14, 2004 acquisition date. These accounts 
will be liquidated as shares are distributed from the DDFP 
in accordance with the plan document. At December 31, 
2004, there were 765,318 shares held by the DDFP. 

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Bank provides postretirement health care and life 
insurance plans to its employees. The life insurance cov-
erage is noncontributory to the participant. Participants 
contribute to the cost of medical coverage based on the 
employee’s length of service with the Bank. The costs of 
such benefits are accrued based on actuarial assumptions 
from the date of hire to the date the employee is fully  
eligible to receive the benefits. On December 31, 2002,  
the Bank eliminated postretirement benefits for employ-
ees with less than 10 years of service. 

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is divided into net income and 
other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive 
income includes items previously recorded directly to 
equity, such as unrealized gains and losses on securities 
available for sale. Comprehensive income is presented  
in the Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity. 

Segment Reporting

The Company’s operations are solely in the financial  
services industry and include providing to its customers 
traditional banking and other financial services. The 
Company operates primarily in the geographical regions 
of Northern and Central New Jersey. Management makes 
operating decisions and assesses performance based on 
an ongoing review of the Bank’s consolidated financial 
results. Therefore, the Company has a single operating 
segment for financial reporting purposes.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income 
available to common stockholders by the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding for the period. Diluted 
earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could 
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common 
stock (such as stock options) were exercised or resulted in 
the issuance of common stock. These potentially dilutive 
shares would then be included in the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding for the period using  
the treasury stock method. Shares issued and shares  
reacquired during the period are weighted for the  
portion of the period that they were outstanding.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2003 and 
2002 consolidated financial statements to conform to the 
presentation adopted in 2004.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of 
Nonmonetary Assets, an amendment of APB Opinion 
No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions.” The 
amendments made by SFAS No. 153 are based on the 
principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should  
be measured based on the fair value of the assets 
exchanged. Further, the amendments eliminate the nar-
row exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar  
productive assets and replace it with a broader exception 
for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have 
commercial substance. The provisions of SFAS No. 153 
are to be applied prospectively and are effective for non-
monetary exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning 
after June 15, 2005, with earlier application permitted for 
nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods 
beginning after December 16, 2004. The adoption of SFAS 
No. 153 is not expected to have a material impact on the 
Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

 In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 
2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)”). SFAS 
No. 123(R) requires companies to recognize in the income  

statement the grant-date fair value of stock options and 
other equity-based compensation issued to employees. 
The provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) are effective for most 
public companies’ interim or annual periods beginning 
after June 15, 2005. The Company’s stock option plan is 
currently accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123, 
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and the 
Company’s SAP is accounted for in accordance with the 
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for  
Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), and related 
Interpretations. Accordingly, compensation expense has 
been recognized in the income statement for the stock  
option plan and expense for the SAP in the amount of  
the fair value of the common stock at the date of grant  
is recognized in the income statement ratably over the 
vesting period. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) is not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s 
financial condition or results of operations.

In September 2004, the FASB approved issuing a Staff 
Position to delay the requirement to record impairment 
losses under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 03-1, 
“The Meaning of Other Than Temporary Impairment and 
its Application to Certain Investments” (“EITF 03-1”).  
The approved delay is applicable to all securities within 
the scope of EITF 03-1 and will remain in effect until new 
guidance is issued and comes into effect. The disclosure 
requirements originally prescribed by EITF 03-1 will 
remain in effect, and SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 59, 
“Accounting for Noncurrent Marketable Equity Securities, 
September 1985, SAB Topic 5.M, Other Than Temporary 
Impairment of Certain Investments in Debt and Equity 
Securities” remains in effect for public companies. 

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) 
FAS106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements 
Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement 
and Modernization Act of 2003.” FSP FAS106-2 super-
sedes FSP FAS106-1 and provides guidance on the 
accounting for the effects of the Medicare Prescription 
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the 
“Act”). The Act introduces a prescription drug benefit 
under Medicare (Medicare Part D) as well as a federal 
subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans  
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that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equiva-
lent to Medicare Part D. At present, detailed regulations 
necessary to implement the Act have not been issued, 
including those that would specify the manner in which 
actuarial equivalency must be determined, the evidence 
required to demonstrate actuarial equivalency, and the 
documentation requirements necessary to be entitled  
to the subsidy. At December 31, 2004, measures of the 
Company’s accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 
and net periodic postretirement benefit cost do not reflect 
any amount associated with the subsidy because the 
Company is unable to conclude whether the benefits pro-
vided by the plan are actuarially equivalent to Medicare 
Part D under the Act.  

 2. Stockholders’ Equity and Acquisition

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 15, 2003 the Bank completed its plan of con-
version, and the Bank became a wholly-owned subsidiary 
of the Company. The Company sold 59.6 million shares of 
common stock (par value $0.01 per share) at $10.00 per 
share. The Company received net proceeds in the amount 
$567.2 million. 

In connection with the Bank’s commitment to its commu-
nity, the plan of conversion provided for the establishment 
of a charitable foundation as part of the conversion. 
Provident donated to the foundation $4.8 million in cash 
and 1.92 million of authorized but unissued shares of 
common stock, which amounted to $24.0 million in 
aggregate. The Company recognized an expense, net of 
income tax benefit, equal to the cash and fair value of  
the stock during 2003. 

Conversion costs were deferred and deducted from the 
proceeds of the shares sold in the offering.

Upon completion of the plan of conversion, a “liquidation 
account” was established in an amount equal to the total 
equity of the Bank as of the latest practicable date prior  
to the conversion. The liquidation account was established 
to provide a limited priority claim to the assets of the Bank 
to “eligible account holders” and “supplemental eligible 
account holders,” as defined in the Plan, who continue to 
maintain deposits in the Bank after the conversion. In  

the unlikely event of a complete liquidation of the Bank, 
and only in such event, each eligible account holder and 
supplemental eligible account holder would receive a liq-
uidation distribution, prior to any payment to the holder 
of the Bank’s common stock. This distribution would be 
based upon each eligible account holder’s and supplemental 
eligible account holder’s proportionate share of the then 
total remaining qualifying deposits. At December 31, 2004, 
the liquidation account, which is an off-balance sheet 
memorandum account, amounted to $102,733,000.

Acquisition

The Company completed the acquisition of First Sentinel 
and the merger of its wholly-owned subsidiary, First 
Savings Bank, with and into the Bank, as of the close of 
business July 14, 2004. First Savings Bank operated 22 full-
service branch offices in Middlesex, Monmouth, Somerset 
and Union Counties, New Jersey. The acquisition presented 
the Company with the strategic opportunity to enhance 
stockholder value, market share and earnings growth. 
The opportunities include strengthening and expanding 
the Company’s presence in the growing Middlesex 
County marketplace through additional retail and com-
mercial banking product offerings, increasing deposit 
share and further building the Company’s core deposit 
funding base, as well as enhancing the Company’s  
avenues for earning asset generation. 

Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of 
Merger, 60% of First Sentinel’s common stock was con-
verted into Provident common stock at an exchange rate 
of 1.092 Provident shares per each First Sentinel share 
and 40% was converted into $22.25 in cash for each First 
Sentinel share. The aggregate consideration paid in the 
merger consisted of $251.9 million in cash and 18,540,662 
shares of the Company’s common stock, which had a 
value of $19.09 per share based on the Company’s average 
closing price from December 21, 2003 to December 26, 
2003. The cash portion of the merger consideration was 
funded through the sale of securities available for sale 
and cash from continuing operations. Shares of the 
Company’s common stock amounting to 199,945 shares 
issued in exchange for shares of First Sentinel common 
stock owned by the Company at the time of the merger 
were retired upon issuance. 

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)
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The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and the 
excess cost over the fair value of net assets acquired 
(“goodwill”) in the transaction was $390.2 million. Under 
the provisions of SFAS No. 142, goodwill is not being 
amortized in connection with this transaction and the 
goodwill will not be deductible for income tax purposes.  
The Company also recorded a core deposit intangible  
of $33.0 million in connection with the acquisition, which 
is being amortized on an accelerated basis over 8.8 years. 
The amortization of premiums and discounts resulting 
from the fair value adjustments of assets and liabilities 
did not have a material impact on the Company’s results 
of operations. 

The following table presents data with respect to the fair 
values of assets and liabilities acquired in the First Sentinel 
acquisition (in thousands):

At July 14, 
2004

Assets:
 Cash and due from banks $ 103,468
 Securities 739,825
 Loans, net 1,190,261
 FHLB-NY stock 19,521
 Fixed assets 16,203
 Other assets 82,797
 Core deposit intangible 33,013
 Goodwill 390,204

Total assets $ 2,575,292

Liabilities:
 Deposits $ 1,359,188
 Borrowings 566,485
 Subordinated debentures 27,448
 Other liabilities 19,767

Total liabilities 1,972,888

Net assets acquired $ 602,404

The net deferred tax liability resulting from adjustments 
of net assets acquired, including the creation of the core 
deposit intangible, amounted to $2.7 million. 

The computation of the purchase price, the allocation of 
the purchase price to net assets of First Sentinel based on 
their respective values as of July 14, 2004, and the result-
ing amount of goodwill are presented below (dollars in 
thousands, except per share amounts):

Common shares outstanding of First Sentinel 28,299,255
Percentage exchanged for Provident  

common stock 60%

First Sentinel common shares exchanged for 
Provident common stock 16,979,553

Exchange ratio 1.092 

18,541,672
Fractional shares (1,010)

Provident common stock issued 18,540,662
Market price per share of Provident  

common stock $  19.09 

Total market value of Provident common  
stock issued $353,941

Retirement of Provident stock issued on  
First Sentinel stock owned by Provident (3,400)

Total market value of Provident common  
stock issued, net $350,541 

Common shares outstanding of First Sentinel 28,299,255
Percentage exchanged for cash 40%

First Sentinel common shares exchanged  
for cash 11,319,702

Cash price per share of First Sentinel  
common stock $  22.25 

Total cash distributed to First Sentinel stockholders $251,863 

Total purchase price of First Sentinel $602,404
Total common stockholders’ equity of First Sentinel 206,144 

Excess of purchase price over carrying value of 
assets acquired 396,260

Purchase accounting adjustments related to assets 
and liabilities acquired, net of tax:

Securities available for sale 1,598
Loans (1,686)
Banking premises and equipment, net (1,020)
Deposits 2,240
Borrowed funds 12,472
Subordinated debentures 990
Other liabilities—Other post-retirement 

employee benefits 597
Post-acquisition transaction costs 5,116
DDFP (334)
ESOP termination (9,849)
Core deposit intangible (16,180)

Goodwill $390,204 
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The following table presents pro forma condensed com-
bined financial information of the Company had the 
acquisition taken place on January 1, for all periods pre-
sented (dollars in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended  
December 31,
2004  2003

Net interest income $ 192,527 $ 186,557
Net income 57,027 35,768
Basic earnings per share $ 0.76 $ 0.46
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.76 $ 0.45

The pro forma combined results of operations presented 
in the preceding table exclude charges directly attribut-
able to the transaction totaling $21.8 million, net of tax, 
for 2004 and $4.3 million, net of tax, for 2003. Transaction 
and acquisition costs have been determined in accordance 
with EITF 95-3. All expected transaction costs have been 
paid as of December 31, 2004. 

 3. Cash and Due from Banks

Included in cash on hand and due from banks at 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 is $4,198,000 and $2,882,000, 
respectively, representing reserves required by banking 
regulations. 

 4. Investment Securities Held to Maturity

Investment securities held to maturity at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

2004

 Amortized 
Cost  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Market 
Value

Mortgage-backed securities $229,001 $1,330 $  (216) $ 230,115
State and municipal obligations 215,858 4,765 (1,441) 219,182
Equity securities 774  —  —  774

$445,633  $6,095  $(1,657)  $ 450,071

2003

Amortized 
Cost  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Market 
Value

Mortgage-backed securities $305,496 $3,143 $  (273) $ 308,366
State and municipal obligations 212,293  5,434  (1,664)  216,063

$517,789  $8,577  $(1,937)  $ 524,429

The Bank generally purchases securities for long-term 
investment purposes, and differences between carrying 
and market values may fluctuate during the investment 
period. In the opinion of management, the Bank expects 
to recover carrying values by retaining investment secu-
rities until their maturity.

The amortized cost and market value of investment secu-
rities at December 31, 2004 by contractual maturity, are 
shown below (in thousands). Expected maturities may  

differ from contractual maturities due to prepayment or 
early call privileges of the issuer.

2004

Amortized 
Cost  

Market 
Value

Due in one year or less $  9,268 $ 9,339
Due after one year through five years 27,542 28,765
Due after five years through ten years 102,914 104,938
Due after ten years 76,134 76,140
Mortgage-backed securities 229,001 230,115
Equity securities 774  774

$445,633  $ 450,071
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The following table represents the Company’s disclosure on investment securities that are accounted for under FAS 115, 
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” with temporary impairment (in thousands):

December 31, 2004 Unrealized Losses

Less Than 12 months  12 Months or Longer  Total

Fair 
Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
 Fair 

Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Fair 

Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses

Mortgage-backed securities $ 50,244 $  (177) $ 9,213 $   (39)  $ 59,457 $  (216)
State and municipal obligations 17,867  (118)  54,122  (1,323)  71,989  (1,441)

$ 68,111  $  (295)  $ 63,335  $(1,362)  $ 131,446  $(1,657)

December 31, 2003 Unrealized Losses

Less Than 12 months  12 Months or Longer  Total

Fair 
Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
 Fair 
Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Fair 

Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses

Mortgage-backed securities $ 38,314 $  (273) $ — $    — $ 38,314 $  (273)
State and municipal obligations 77,450  (1,664)  —  —  77,450  (1,664)

$ 115,764  $(1,937)  $ —  $    —  $ 115,764  $(1,937)

Securities with unrealized loss positions listed in this disclosure do not represent impairments that are other than 
temporary. The temporary loss position is the result of changes in interest rates relative to the coupon of the indi-
vidual security. 

 5. Securities Available for Sale

Securities available for sale at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

2004

Amortized 
Cost  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Market 
Value

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 95,887 $ 154  $ (729) $ 95,312
FHLMC obligations 1,971 37 — 2,008
Mortgage-backed securities 1,167,838 5,243 (3,994) 1,169,087
State and municipal obligations 10,876 91 (25) 10,942
Corporate obligations 90,735 1,861 (101) 92,495
Equity securities  32,864   3,761    (129)  36,496

 $1,400,171   $ 11,147    $ (4,978)  $ 1,406,340
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2003

Amortized 
Cost  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Market 
Value

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 120,913 $ 671 $ (4) $ 121,580
FNMA obligations 5,000 36 — 5,036
Mortgage-backed securities 874,401 4,179 (4,647) 873,933
Corporate obligations 104,818 5,059 — 109,877
Equity securities  35,802   5,787    (186)  41,403

 $ 1,140,934   $ 15,732    $ (4,837)  $ 1,151,829

Securities available for sale having a carrying value of 
$564,414,000 and $331,157,000 at December 31, 2004 and 
2003, respectively, are pledged to secure other borrowings 
and securities sold under repurchase agreements.

The amortized cost and market value of securities available 
for sale at December 31, 2004, by contractual maturity,  
are shown below (in thousands). Expected maturities 
may differ from contractual maturities due to prepayment 
or early call privileges of the issuer. 

2004

Amortized 
Cost  

Market 
Value

Due in one year or less $ 44,610 $ 44,787
Due after one year through five years 143,957 144,949
Due after five years through ten years 10,902 11,021
Mortgage-backed securities 1,167,838 1,169,087
Equity securities  32,864  36,496

 $ 1,400,171  $ 1,406,340

Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale during 2004 were $316,633,000, resulting in gross gains and gross 
losses of $2,637,000 and $1,327,000, respectively. Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale during 2003 were 
$86,809,000, resulting in gross gains and gross losses of $1,294,000 and $178,000, respectively. During 2002, proceeds 
from the sale of securities available for sale were $1,041,000, resulting in gross gains and gross losses of $960,000 and 
$0, respectively. 

The following table represents the Company’s disclosure on securities available for sale with temporary impairment 
(in thousands):

December 31, 2004 Unrealized Losses

Less Than 12 Months  12 Months or Longer  Total

Fair 
Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Fair 

Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Fair 

Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 89,164 $  (730) $ — $   — $ 89,164 $  (730)
Mortgage-backed securities 362,769 (2,198) 85,776 (1,795) 448,545 (3,993)
State and municipal obligations 3,577 (25) — — 3,577 (25)
Corporate obligations 13,100 (101) — — 13,100  (101)
Equity securities 3,253  (129)  —  —  3,253   (129)

$ 471,863  $(3,183)  $ 85,776  $(1,795)  $ 557,639  $(4,978)

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)
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December 31, 2003 Unrealized Losses

Less Than 12 Months  12 Months or Longer  Total

Fair 
Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Fair 

Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses  
Fair 

Value  

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 34,924 $   (4) $ — $   — $ 34,924 $   (4)
Mortgage-backed securities 408,920 (4,647) — — 408,920  (4,647)
Equity securities 1,719  (186)  —  —  1,719   (186)

$ 445,563  $(4,837)  $ —  $   —  $ 445,563  $(4,837)

Securities with unrealized loss positions listed in this disclosure do not represent impairments that are other than 
temporary. The temporary loss position is the result of changes in interest rates relative to the coupon of the indi-
vidual security. 

 6. Loans

Loans receivable at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are sum-
marized as follows (in thousands):

2004  2003

Mortgage loans:
 Residential $ 1,866,614 $ 1,044,788
 Commercial 685,330 449,092
 Multi-family 86,292 90,552
 Commercial construction 188,902  99,072

  Total mortgage loans 2,827,138  1,683,504

Mortgage warehouse loans — 4,148
Commercial loans 353,626 246,606
Consumer loans 514,296  300,825

867,922  551,579

Premiums on purchased loans 14,421 5,411
Less unearned discounts 1,309 1,547
Less net deferred fees 961  1,580

$ 3,707,211  $ 2,237,367

Premiums on purchased loans are amortized over the 
lives of the loans as an adjustment to the loans’ yield. 
Required reductions due to loan prepayments are charged 
against interest income. For the years ended December 31, 
2004, 2003 and 2002, $3,885,000, $924,000 and $905,000, 
respectively, was charged to interest income as a result  
of prepayments and normal amortization.

Included in loans are loans for which the accrual of inter-
est income has been discontinued due to deterioration in 

the financial condition of the borrowers. The principal 
amount of these nonaccrual loans is $6,195,000 and 
$6,128,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

If the nonaccrual loans had performed in accordance 
with their original terms, interest income would have 
increased by $274,000, $589,000 and $651,000, for the years 
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. At 
December 31, 2004, there are no commitments to lend 
additional funds to borrowers whose loans are nonaccrual.

At December 31, 2004, impaired loans consisted of five 
commercial loans totaling $862,000, all of which are 
included in nonaccrual loans. General and specific alloca-
tions of the allowance for loan losses attributable to 
impaired loans totaled $172,000 at December 31, 2004. 
There were no impaired loans at December 31, 2003.  
The average balances of impaired loans during the years 
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $1,174,000, 
$0 and $1,382,000 respectively. The amount of cash basis 
interest income that was recognized on impaired loans 
during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 
was insignificant for the respective periods. 

Loans serviced for others are not included in the accom-
panying consolidated statements of condition. The unpaid 
principal balances of loans serviced for others was approx-
imately $306,960,000 and $183,545,000, at December 31, 
2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Bank, in the normal course of conducting its business, 
extends credit to meet the financing needs of its custom-
ers through commitments. Commitments and contingent 
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liabilities, such as commitments to extend credit (includ-
ing loan commitments of $424,820,000 and $396,870,000, 
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and  
undisbursed home equity and personal credit lines of 
$174,506,000 and $74,071,000 at December 31, 2004 and 
2003, respectively), exist which are not reflected in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. These 
instruments involve elements of credit and interest rate 
risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements. The Bank uses the same credit poli-
cies and collateral requirements in making commitments 
and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet 
loans. Commitments generally have fixed expiration 
dates or other termination clauses and may require pay-
ment of a fee. Since the commitments may expire without 
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank 
evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-
case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed 
necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based 
on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower.

The Bank grants residential real estate loans on single 
and multi-family dwellings to borrowers throughout 
New Jersey. Its borrowers’ abilities to repay their obliga-
tions are dependent upon various factors, including the 
borrowers’ income and net worth, cash flows generated 
by the underlying collateral, value of the underlying  
collateral, and priority of the Bank’s lien on the property. 
Such factors are dependent upon various economic condi-
tions and individual circumstances beyond the Bank’s 
control; the Bank is therefore subject to risk of loss. The 
Bank believes that its lending policies and procedures 
adequately minimize the potential exposure to such risks 
and that adequate provisions for loan losses are provided 
for all known and inherent risks. Collateral and/or guar-
antees are required for virtually all loans.

 7. Allowance for Loan Losses

The activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years 
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows  
(in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 

Balance at beginning  
 of period $ 20,631 $ 20,986 $ 21,909
Allowance of acquired  
 institution (First Sentinel) 12,925 — —
Provision charged  
 to operations 3,600 1,160 12,800
Recoveries of loans  
 previously charged off 2,971 2,871 1,197
Loans charged off (6,361) (4,386) (14,920)

  Balance at end of period $ 33,766 $ 20,631 $ 20,986 

During 2002, the Bank charged off $12.5 million related 
to a $20.6 million warehouse loan, resulting from an 
alleged fraud involving a mortgage warehouse borrower. 

 8. Banking Premises and Equipment

A summary of banking premises and equipment at 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 is as follows (in thousands):

2004  2003

Land $ 10,481 $ 6,394
Banking premises 60,245 42,033
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 41,170 28,224
Leasehold improvements 16,064 11,473
Construction in progress 2,382  1,787

130,342 89,911
Less accumulated depreciation  
 and amortization 65,737  43,170

$ 64,605  $ 46,741

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 
2004, 2003 and 2002 amounted to $6,989,000, $6,036,000 
and $5,548,000, respectively.

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)
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 9. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are sum-
marized as follows (in thousands):

2004  2003

Goodwill $ 410,112 $ 19,908
Core deposit premiums 31,574 2,982
Mortgage servicing rights 1,054 1,048
SERP 408   —

$ 443,148  $ 23,938

Amortization expense of intangible assets for the years 
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows  
(in thousands):

2004  2003  2002

Goodwill amortization $ — $ — $ 55
Core deposit premiums 4,421 1,149 1,046
Mortgage servicing rights 845  2,550  2,576

$ 5,266  $ 3,699  $ 3,677

Accumulated amortization of core deposit intangibles 
totaled $13,661,000 at December 31, 2004. Scheduled 
amortization of core deposit intangibles for each of the 
next five years is as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,  
2005 $6,838,000
2006 5,756,000
2007 4,997,000
2008 4,238,000
2009 3,479,000

During 2002, in connection with the implementation of 
SFAS No. 142, the Bank determined that $519,000 of good-
will related to the acquisition of a mortgage company was 
impaired, and recognized the impairment as a cumulative 
effect of a change in accounting principle.

 10. Deposits

Deposits at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized 
as follows (in thousands):

2004

Weighted 
Average 
Interest 

Rate  2003

Weighted 
Average 
Interest 

Rate

Savings deposits $ 1,538,466 0.95% $ 987,877 1.24%
Money market  
 accounts 155,514 1.03 116,176 1.60
NOW accounts 485,698 0.64 329,997 1.04
Non-interest-  
 bearing  
 deposits 475,600   — 328,815   —
Certificate  
 of deposits  1,395,195 2.39 933,111 2.40

$ 4,050,473 $ 2,695,976

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit accounts at 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

2004  2003

Within one year $ 959,962 $ 709,087
One to three years 263,496 145,097
Three to five years 135,932 75,022
Five years and thereafter 35,805  3,905

$ 1,395,195  $ 933,111

Interest expense on deposits for the years ended 
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is summarized as  
follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2004  2003  2002

Savings deposits $ 11,011 $ 11,839 $ 14,459
NOW and money  
 market accounts 4,274 3,590 4,897
Certificates of deposits 24,221  23,742  35,481

$ 39,506  $ 39,171  $ 54,837
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 11. Borrowed Funds

Borrowed funds at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are sum-
marized as follows (in thousands):

2004  2003

Securities sold under  
 repurchase agreements $ 465,386 $ 44,663
FHLB line of credit — 65,000
FHLB advances 700,678  626,665

$ 1,166,064  $ 736,328

FHLB advances are at fixed rates and mature between 
January 31, 2005 and November 13, 2018. These advances 
are secured by investment securities and loans receivable 
under a blanket collateral agreement.

Scheduled maturities of FHLB advances at December 31, 
2004 are as follows (in thousands):

2004

Due in one year or less $ 189,197
Due after one year through two years 158,937
Due after two years through three years 130,030
Due after three years through four years 169,509
Due after four years through five years 14,283
Thereafter 38,722

$ 700,678

Scheduled maturities of securities sold under repur-
chase agreements at December 31, 2004 are as follows  
(in thousands):

2004

Due in one year or less $ 175,712
Due after one year through two years 56,039
Due after two years through three years 12,100
Due after three years through four years 94,015
Due after four years through five years 32,310
Thereafter 95,210

$ 465,386

The following tables set forth certain information as to 
borrowed funds for the years ended December 31, 2004 
and 2003 (in thousands):

Maximum 
Balance  

Average 
Balance  

Weighted 
Average 
Interest 

Rate

2004:
 Securities sold  
  under repurchase  
  agreements $493,409 254,185 2.48%
 FHLB line of credit 70,000 9,899 1.05%
 FHLB advances 768,858 680,297 3.04%

2003:
 Securities sold  
  under repurchase  
  agreements $ 54,580 49,216 0.84%
 FHLB line of credit 65,000 3,602 1.11%
 FHLB advances 626,665 514,914 2.91%

Securities sold under repurchase agreements include 
wholesale borrowing arrangements as well as arrangements 
with deposit customers of the Bank to sweep funds into 
short-term borrowings. The Bank uses securities available 
for sale to pledge as collateral for the repurchase agree-
ments. These securities are held at and under the control 
of the Bank. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Bank 
had unused lines of credit with the FHLB of $100,000,000 
and $35,000,000, respectively.

 12. Subordinated Debentures

As part of the First Sentinel acquisition, the Company 
assumed subordinated debentures issued by First 
Sentinel in connection with the issuance, in November 
2001, of $25,000,000 of Company-obligated mandatorily 
redeemable preferred capital securities through special 
purpose business trusts. Of the $25,000,000 of preferred 
capital securities sold, $12,500,000 have a floating rate of 
interest, which resets semi-annually, equal to six-month 
LIBOR plus 3.75%. The floating rate, however, may not 
exceed 11.00% for the first five years. The remaining 
$12,500,000 of preferred capital securities have a fixed 
interest rate of 9.95%. Distributions on the preferred  
capital securities are payable semi-annually. The stated 
maturity of the preferred capital securities is December 8, 
2031, with early redemption permitted on any June 8 or  

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)
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The following table shows the change in benefit obligation, the change in plan assets and the funded status for the 
pension plan and post-retirement health care and life insurance plans and the accumulated benefit obligation at the 
measurement dates, December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands):

Pension  Post-Retirement

2004  2003  2002  2004  2003  2002 

Change in benefit obligation:
 Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 22,033 $ 31,148 $ 25,690 $ 22,272 $ 19,962 $ 17,934
 Acquisition of First Sentinel — — — 3,165 — —
 Plan Amendment — (11,915) 625 — (4,136) —
 Service cost — 415 1,479 659 479 1,125
 Interest cost 1,336 1,579 1,929 1,582 1,227 1,192
 Actuarial loss (gain) (432) 3,824 1,470 1,721 2,589 (652)
 Benefits paid (2,925) (3,018) (1,171) (506) (327) (359)
 Change in actuarial assumptions 1,501 — 1,126 2,167 2,478 722 

  Benefit obligation at end of year $ 21,513 $ 22,033 $ 31,148 $ 31,060 $ 22,272 $ 19,962 

Change in plan assets:
 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 22,734 $ 20,510 $ 16,714 $ — $ — $ —
 Actual return on plan assets 3,129 4,842 (1,707) — — —
 Employer contributions — 400 6,674 506 327 359
 Benefits paid (2,925) (3,018) (1,171) (506) (327) (359)

  Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 22,938 $ 22,734 $ 20,510 $ — $ — $ — 

Funded status $ 1,425 $ 701 $ (10,638) $ (31,060) $ (22,272) $ (19,962)
Unrecognized transition asset — — — 3,836 4,219 5,024
Unrecognized prior service cost — — 533 — — —
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss (57) 202 11,881 6,342 2,570 879 

  Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost $ 1,368 $ 903 $ 1,776 $ (20,882) $ (15,483) $ (14,059)

Accumulated Benefit Obligation $ 21,513 $ 22,033 $ 20,431 $ — $ — $ — 

December 8 on or after December 8, 2006, at par. Upon 
assumption of the subordinated debentures, the Company 
recorded a premium of $1,674,000, representing the fair 
market value adjustment at the acquisition date. This  
premium is being accreted against interest expense on  
a straight-line basis over 2.5 years. 

 13. Benefit Plans

The Bank has a noncontributory defined benefit pension 
plan covering all of its employees who have attained age 
21 with at least one year of service. The plan was frozen 
on April 1, 2003. The plan provides for 100% vesting after 
five years of service. The plan’s assets are invested in group 
annuity contracts and investment funds managed by the 
Prudential Insurance Company and Allmerica Financial.

In addition to pension benefits, certain health care and 
life insurance benefits are made available to retired 
employees. The costs of such benefits are accrued based 
on actuarial assumptions from the date of hire to the date 
the employee is fully eligible to receive the benefits. On 
December 8, 2003, The Medicare Prescription Drug, 
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) 
was signed into law. The Act introduces a prescription 
drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D) as well as 
a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit 
plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially 
equivalent to Medicare Part D. Measures of the benefit 
obligation or net periodic benefit cost shown below  
do not reflect any amount associated with the subsidy 
because the Company is unable to conclude whether the 
benefits provided by the plan are actuarially equivalent 
to Medicare Part D under the Act.
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Net periodic benefit cost for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, included the following components 
(in thousands):

Pension  Post-Retirement

2004 2003 2002 2004  2003  2002

Service cost $ — $  415 $ 1,479 $  659 $ 479 $ 1,125
Interest cost 1,336 1,579 1,929 1,582 1,227 1,192
Expected return on plan assets (3,129) (4,734) 1,708 — — —
Amortization of:
 Net gain (loss) 1,328 3,480 (2,655) 159 — —
 Unrecognized prior service cost —  533  74 — — —
 Unrecognized remaining assets — — —  384   384   419

  Net periodic benefit (increase) cost (465) 1,273 2,535 2,784  2,090  2,736

  Curtailment gain — — — —  (339) —

  Post-retirement benefit (increase) cost $ (465) $ 1,273 $ 2,535 $2,784  $ 1,751  $ 2,736

The weighted average actuarial assumptions used in the plan determinations at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 
were as follows:

Pension  Post-Retirement

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 

Discount rate 5.75% 6.25% 6.75% 5.75% 6.25% 6.75%
Rate of compensation increase — 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50
Expected return on plan assets 8.00 8.00 8.00 — — —
Medical and life insurance benefits cost rate of increase — — — 9.00 9.00 8.50 

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant 
effect on the amounts reported for health care plans.  
A 1% change in the assumed health care cost trend rate 
would have the following effects on post-retirement  
benefits (in thousands):

1% 
Increase  

1% 
Decrease

Effect on total service  
 cost and interest cost $  385 $  (330)
Effect on postretirement  
 benefits obligation 4,475  (3,890)

Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected 
future service, as appropriate for the next five years are as 
follows (in thousands):

Pension  
Post- 

Retirement

2005 $488,000 $652,000
2006 596,000  697,000
2007 687,000  738,000
2008 745,000  774,000
2009 800,000  828,000

The weighted-average asset allocation of pension benefit 
plan assets at December 31 were:

Asset Category 2004  2003

Domestic equities 69% 68%
Foreign equities 12% 10%
US bonds 8% 10%
International bonds 5% 4%
Real estate 5% 5%
Cash 1%  3%

Total 100%  100%

The Company’s expected return on plan assets assumption 
is based on historical experience and by evaluating input 
from the trustee managing the plan’s assets. The expected 
return on plan assets is also impacted by the target allo-
cation of assets, which is based on the Company’s goal of 
earning the highest rate of return while maintaining risk 
at acceptable levels.
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The plan strives to have assets sufficiently diversified  
so that adverse or unexpected results from one security 
class will not have an unduly detrimental impact on  
the entire portfolio. The target allocation of assets and 
acceptable ranges around the targets are as follows:

Asset Category Target  
Allowable 

Range

Domestic equities 60% 50–70%
Foreign equities 10% 5–17%
US bonds 25% 10–30%
International bonds 0% 0–5%
Real estate 5% 0–10%
Cash 0%  0–35%

Total 100%   

The Company anticipates that the long-term asset alloca-
tion on average will approximate the targeted allocation. 
Actual asset allocations are the result of investment 
decisions by a hired investment manager bound by the 
allowable ranges.

The pension plan was frozen as of April 1, 2003. Based on 
the measurement date of December 31, 2004, management 
believes that no contributions will be made to the pension 
plan in 2005.

The Bank has a savings incentive plan covering sub-
stantially all employees of the Bank. For 2004, the Bank 
matched 50% of the first 6% contributed by the par-
ticipants. The contribution percentage is determined 
quarterly by the Board of Directors. The Bank’s  
contributions for 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $702,000, 
$1,033,000 and $1,265,000, respectively.

The Bank also maintains a non-qualified supplemental 
retirement plan for certain senior officers of the Bank. 
This plan was frozen effective April 1, 2003. The plan, 
which is unfunded, provides benefits in excess of that 
permitted to be paid by the pension plan under provisions 
of the tax law. Amounts expensed under this supplemen-
tal retirement plan amounted to $134,000, $100,000 and 
$279,000 for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
At December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, $1,785,000, $1,242,000 
and $1,142,000, respectively, was recorded in other liabili-
ties on the consolidated statements of condition for this 
supplemental retirement plan.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The ESOP is a tax-qualified plan designed to invest pri-
marily in the Company’s common stock that provides 
employees with the opportunity to receive a funded 
retirement benefit from the Bank, based primarily on the 
value of the Company’s common stock. The ESOP was 
authorized to purchase, and did purchase 4,769,464 shares 
of the Company’s common stock at an average price of 
$17.09 per share with the proceeds of a loan from the 
Company to the ESOP. The outstanding loan principal  
at December 31, 2004, was $77.5 million. Those shares 
pledged as collateral for the loan are released from the 
pledge for allocation to participants as loan payments  
are made.

For the plan year ending December 31, 2004, there are 
159,073 shares that are committed to be released and will 
be allocated to participants at the end of the plan year 
versus 156,337 shares released in the plan year ending 
December 31, 2003. Unallocated ESOP shares held in sus-
pense totaled 4,454,054 at December 31, 2004, and had a 
fair market value of $86.3 million. ESOP compensation 
expense for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 
was $3,026,000 and $2,736,000, respectively.

The Supplemental Executive Savings Plan

This is a non-qualified plan that provides supplemental 
benefits to certain executives who are prevented from 
receiving the full benefits contemplated by the Savings  
Incentive Plan’s and the ESOP’s benefit formulas. The 
supplemental payments for the Savings Incentive Plan  
portion of the Supplemental Executive Savings Plan con-
sist of payments representing employee and employer 
contributions that cannot be allocated to participants 
under the Savings Incentive Plan due to the limitations 
imposed on tax-qualified plans. The supplemental  
payments for the ESOP portion of the Supplemental 
Executive Savings Plan consist of payments representing 
shares that cannot be allocated to participants under the 
ESOP due to legal limitations imposed on tax-qualified 
plans. The Supplemental Executive Savings Plan was  
frozen effective December 31, 2003. Accrued benefits 
under the frozen plan will continue to be governed by  
the tax laws in effect prior to the enactment of Internal 
Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 409A created by the 
American Jobs Creation Act (“AJCA”).  
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Non-Qualified Supplemental Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Effective January 1, 2004, the Bank established a new 
deferred compensation plan for executive management 
and key employees of the Bank, known as The Provident 
Bank Non-Qualified Supplemental Employee Stock Owner-
ship Plan (the “Supplemental ESOP”). The Supplemental 
ESOP was adopted in order to satisfy the requirements  
of new IRC Section 409A created by the AJCA. The 
Supplemental ESOP is a non-qualified plan the provides 
additional benefits to certain executives whose benefits 
under the ESOP are limited by tax law limitations appli-
cable to tax-qualified plans. The Supplemental ESOP 
requires a contribution by the Bank for each participant 
who also participates in the ESOP equal to the amount 
which would have been contributed under the terms of 
the ESOP but for the tax law limitations, less the amount 
actually contributed under the ESOP.

Stock Award Plan

The purpose of the SAP is to promote the growth and 
profitability of the Company by providing directors and 
key employees with an equity interest in the Company 
as an incentive to achieve corporate goals. The SAP was 
approved by the Company’s stockholders on July 17, 2003.  
Under the SAP, 2,384,732 shares of the Company’s com-
mon stock are available for awards. The Company has 

purchased 2,384,732 shares to fund the SAP on the open 
market at an average price of $19.85 per share as of 
December 31, 2004.

As a general rule, restricted stock grants granted under 
the SAP are held in escrow for the benefit of the award 
recipient until vested. Awards outstanding generally vest 
in five annual installments commencing one year from 
the date of the award. As of December 31, 2004, common 
stock that had not been awarded totaled 1,073,637 shares. 
Expense attributable to the SAP amounted to $5,197,000 
and $1,918,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 
2003, respectively.

A summary status of the granted, but unvested shares 
under the SAP as of December 31, and changes during 
the year, is presented below:

Restricted Stock 
Awards

2004  2003

Outstanding at beginning of year 1,260,000 —
 Granted 91,095 1,260,000
 Forfeited (40,000) —
 Vested (252,000) —

Outstanding at the end of year 1,059,095  1,260,000

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)

Stock Option Plan

Each stock option granted entitles the holder to purchase one share of the Company’s common stock at an exercise 
price not less than the fair market value of a share of common stock at the date of grant. Options vest over a five-year 
period from the date of grant and expire no later than 10 years following the grant date. Under the Company’s stock 
option plan, 5,961,830 shares of the Company’s common stock have been reserved for issuance. Directors and employ-
ees have been granted 4,772,000 stock options as of December 31, 2004.

A summary of the status of the granted, but unexercised stock options as of December 31, and changes during the year 
is presented below: 

2004  2003

Number 
of Stock 
Options  

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price  

Number 
of Stock 
Options  

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 4,943,800 $18.57 — $  —
 Granted 100,000 18.15 4,953,800 18.57
 Exercised (5,385) 18.57 — —
 Forfeited (271,800) 18.57  (10,000) 18.57

Outstanding at the end of year 4,766,615  $18.56  4,943,800  $18.57
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The Company applies SFAS No. 123 and related Inter-
pretations in accounting for stock options. Compensation 
expense for the Company’s stock option plan was deter-
mined based on the fair value at the grant date consistent 
with SFAS No. 123. Compensation expense related to  
the Company’s stock option plan totaled $3,489,000 and 
$1,689,000 for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The fair value of the option grants was estimated on the 
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model with the following weighted average assumptions:

For the Years Ended 
December 31,
2004  2003

Expected dividend yield 1.22% 1.00%
Expected volatility 19.59% 15.00%
Risk-free interest rate 3.68% 2.40%
Expected option life 8 years 8 years

 14. Income Taxes

The current and deferred amounts of income tax expense 
(benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 
2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 

Current:
 Federal $ 23,030 $ 14,048 $ 10,168
 State 1,513 2,152 600 

   Total current 24,543 16,200 10,768 

Deferred:
 Federal (5,562) (8,286) 517
 State 293 (890) (1,023)
 Change in state  
  deferred tax rate, net — — (1,031)

   Total deferred (5,269) (9,176) (1,537)

$ 19,274 $ 7,024 $ 9,231 

The Bank recalculated its deferred tax assets and liabili-
ties during the third quarter of 2002 as a result of an 
increase in the statutory tax rate for New Jersey thrifts 
from 3% to 9% retroactive to January 1, 2002. The new 
legislation was signed into law during the third quarter 
of 2002.

The Bank also recorded, in accumulated other compre-
hensive income, a deferred (benefit) expense of $(1,733,000), 
$(4,082,000) and $5,401,000 during the years 2004, 2003 
and 2002, respectively, to reflect the tax effect of the  
unrealized (loss) gain on securities available for sale.

A reconciliation between the amount of reported total 
income tax expense and the amount computed by multi-
plying the applicable statutory income tax rate is as  
follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 

Tax expense at statutory  
 rate of 35% $ 24,001 $ 9,016 $ 12,534
Increase (decrease)  
 in taxes resulting from:

State tax, net of federal 
income tax benefit  1,174  820  (945)

Tax-exempt income (3,068) (1,968)  (1,180)
Change in valuation 

reserve (1,848) — —
Bank-owned life  

insurance (1,567) (1,346) (1,004)
Other, net  582  502  (174)

$ 19,274 $ 7,024 $  9,231 

The net deferred tax asset is included in other assets in 
the consolidated statements of financial condition. The tax 
effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant 
portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax  
 

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding  Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices  

Number  
of Options 

Outstanding  

Average 
Remaining 
Contractual 

Life  

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price  

Number  
of Options 
Exercisable  

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price

$ 17.43–19.22 4,766,615 8.5 years $18.56 933,323 $18.57
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liabilities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows  
(in thousands):

2004  2003

Deferred tax assets:
 Deferred fee income $ — $ 505
 Allowance for loan losses 13,480 8,355
 Post-retirement benefit 8,922 6,518
 Deferred compensation 5,261 341
 Pension expense — 108
 Intangibles 4,118 2,347
 Depreciation 495 1,589
 SERP 729 508
 Deferred gain 133 200
 Contribution carry-forward 6,799 9,582
 Accrued bonuses 518 —
 ESOP 622 73
 Stock compensation 2,519 1,360
 Other 295  739

   Total gross deferred tax assets 43,891 32,225
Valuation Reserve 946  2,794

Deferred tax liabilities:
 Unrealized gain on securities $ 2,402 $ 4,135
 Pension expense 335 —
 Deferred loan costs 1,734 —
 Investment securities, principally  
  due to accretion of discounts 163 158
 Purchase accounting adjustments 3,567 —
 Originated mortgage servicing rights 306 189
 Other 76  1,137

   Total gross deferred tax liabilities 8,583  5,619

   Net deferred tax asset $ 34,362  $ 23,812

Equity at December 31, 2004 includes approximately 
$51,866,000 for which no provision for income tax has 
been made. This amount represents an allocation of 
income to bad debt deductions for tax purposes only. 
Events that would result in taxation of these reserves  
include failure to qualify as a bank for tax purposes,  
distributions in complete or partial liquidation, stock 
redemptions and excess distributions to shareholders.  

At December 31, 2004 the Company had an unrecognized  
tax liability of $21,187,000 with respect to this reserve.

In 2004, the Company reduced the valuation reserve  
pertaining to the charitable contributions carry-forward 
$1,855,000 as a result of projected improvement in the 
Company’s ability to generate sufficient future taxable 
income to realize the deferred tax asset. This improve-
ment in the Company’s future earnings outlook was 
largely due to the First Sentinel acquisition. The Company 
maintained a $946,000 valuation reserve against certain 
state deferred tax assets at December 31, 2004, which are 
not expected to be realized based upon projected future 
taxable income. Management has determined that it is 
more likely than not that it will realize the net deferred 
tax asset based upon the nature and timing of the items 
listed above. In order to fully realize the net deferred  
tax asset, the Bank will need to generate future taxable 
income. Management has projected that the Bank will 
generate sufficient taxable income to utilize the net 
deferred tax asset; however, there can be no assurance 
that such levels of taxable income will be generated.

 15. Lease Commitments

The approximate future minimum rental commitments for 
all significant noncancellable operating leases at December 31, 
2004 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31:
2005 $ 2,931
2006  2,980
2007 3,004
2008 2,882
2009 2,889
Thereafter 33,042

$ 47,728

Rental expense was $3,107,000, $2,411,000 and  
$2,269,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 
and 2002, respectively.

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)



Provident Financial Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  Page 49

 16. Commitments, Contingencies and 
Concentrations of Credit Risk

In the normal course of business, various commitments 
and contingent liabilities are outstanding which are not 
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial  
statements. In the opinion of management, the consoli-
dated financial position of the Company will not be  
materially affected by the outcome of such commitments 
or contingent liabilities.

The Bank previously entered into a long-term data pro-
cessing contract. In exchange for certain data processing 
services, the Bank paid a fee of $7,615,000, $6,191,000 and 
$5,849,000 the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 
2002, respectively.

A substantial portion of the Bank’s loans are one- to four-
family residential first mortgage loans secured by real 
estate located in New Jersey. Accordingly, the collectibility 
of a substantial portion of the Bank’s loan portfolio and 
the recovery of a substantial portion of the carrying amount 
of other real estate owned are susceptible to changes in 
real estate market conditions.

The Company has entered into employment agreements 
with three executives. Each of these agreements has a 
term of thirty-six months. The agreements renew for an 
additional year beginning on the first anniversary date  
of the agreement, and on each anniversary date thereafter, 
so that the remaining term is thirty-six months. In the 
event the executive’s employment is terminated for rea-
sons other than for cause, for retirement or for disability 
or following a change in control the executive would be 
entitled to a lump sum payment equivalent to the greater 
of: the payments due for the remaining term of the 
employment agreement, or three times the sum of (i) the 
highest annual rate of base salary and (ii) the greater of 
the average bonus paid over the last three years or the 
cash bonus paid in the last year, as well as continuation 
of life, medical, dental and disability insurance coverage 
for three years. The agreements generally provide that 
following a change in control (as defined in the agree-
ment), the executive will receive the severance payments  
and insurance benefits described above if he resigns dur-
ing the one-year period following the change in control 

or if the executive is terminated during the remaining 
term of the employment agreement following the change 
in control. The executives would receive an aggregate of 
$6,728,000 pursuant to the employment agreements upon 
a change of control of the Company based upon current 
levels of compensation.

 17. Regulatory Capital Requirements

FDIC regulations require banks to maintain minimum 
levels of regulatory capital. Under the regulations in 
effect at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Bank is required 
to maintain (i) a minimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 capital 
to total adjusted assets of 4.00%, and (ii) minimum ratios 
of Tier 1 and total capital to risk-weighted assets of 4.00% 
and 8.00%, respectively.

Under its prompt corrective action regulations, the FDIC 
is required to take certain supervisory actions (and may 
take additional discretionary actions) with respect to an 
undercapitalized institution. Such actions could have a 
direct material effect on the institution’s financial state-
ments. The regulations establish a framework for the  
classification of savings institutions into five categories: 
well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapital-
ized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically  
undercapitalized. Generally, an institution is considered 
well capitalized if it has a leverage (Tier 1) capital ratio of 
at least 5.00%; a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 
6.00%; and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.00%.

The foregoing capital ratios are based in part on specific 
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities and certain off-
balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory account-
ing practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also 
subject to qualitative judgments by the FDIC about capital 
components, risk weightings and other factors.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Bank meets all cap-
ital adequacy requirements to which it is subject. Further, 
the most recent FDIC notification categorized the Bank as  
a well-capitalized institution under the prompt corrective  
action regulations. There have been no conditions or 
events since that notification that management believes 
have changed the Bank’s capital classification.
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The following is a summary of the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, compared 
to the FDIC minimum capital adequacy requirements and the FDIC requirements for classification as a well-capitalized 
institution. The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the following table (in thousands).

Actual  

For Capital 
Adequacy 
Purposes  

To Be Well-
Capitalized  

Under Prompt 
Corrective Action 

Provisions

Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio

As of December 31, 2004:
 Leverage (Tier 1) $ 498,977 8.33% $ 239,561 4.00% $ 299,451 5.00%
 Risk-based capital:
  Tier 1 498,977 13.31 149,963 4.00 224,945 6.00
  Total 532,865  14.21  299,926  8.00  374,908  10.00 

Actual  

For Capital 
Adequacy 
Purposes  

To Be Well-
Capitalized  

Under Prompt 
Corrective Action 

Provisions

Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio

As of December 31, 2003:
 Leverage (Tier 1) $ 530,985 13.27% $ 160,015 4.00% $ 200,019 5.00%
 Risk-based capital:
  Tier 1 530,985 21.52 98,717 4.00 148,075 6.00
  Total 551,766  22.36  197,434  8.00  246,792  10.00 

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)

 18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, 
“Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” 
requires that the Company disclose estimated fair values 
for its financial instruments. Fair value estimates, methods 
and assumptions are set forth below for the Company’s 
financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and 
short-term investments, the carrying amount approximates 
fair value.

Investment Securities and Securities Available for Sale

The fair value of investment securities and securities 
available for sale is estimated based on bid quotations 
received from securities dealers, if available. If a quoted 
market price is not available, fair value is estimated using 
quoted market prices of similar instruments, adjusted  
for differences between the quoted instruments and the 
instruments being valued.

Loans

Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with  
similar financial characteristics. Loans are segregated  
by type such as residential mortgage, construction and  
consumer. Each loan category is further segmented into 
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fixed and adjustable rate interest terms and into  
performing and nonperforming categories.

The fair value of performing loans is estimated using  
a combination of techniques, including discounting  
estimated future cash flows and quoted market prices  
of similar instruments, where available.

The fair value for significant nonperforming loans is based 
on recent external appraisals of collateral securing such 
loans, adjusted for the timing of anticipated cash flows.

Deposits

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as 
non-interest bearing demand deposits and savings depos-
its, is equal to the amount payable on demand. The fair 
value of certificates of deposit is based on the discounted 
value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is esti-
mated using the rates currently offered for deposits with 
similar remaining maturities.

Borrowed Funds

The fair value of borrowed funds is estimated by dis-
counting future cash flows using rates available for debt 
with similar terms and maturities.

Commitments to Extend Credit and Letters of Credit

The fair value of commitments to extend credit and letters 
of credit is estimated using the fees currently charged  
to enter into similar agreements, taking into account  
the remaining terms of the agreements and the present 
creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed rate  
loan commitments, fair value also considers the differ-
ence between current levels of interest rates and the  
committed rates. The fair value estimates of commit-
ments to extend credit and standby letters of credit  
are deemed immaterial.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are presented in 
the following table (in thousands): 

2004  2003

Carrying 
Value  

Fair  
Value  

Carrying 
Value  

Fair  
Value

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 163,694 $ 163,694 $ 175,852 $ 175,852
 Securities available for sale 1,406,340 1,406,340 1,151,829 1,151,829
 Investment securities 445,633 450,071 517,789 524,429
 FHLB stock 48,283 48,283 34,585 34,585
 Loans 3,673,445 3,653,009 2,216,736 2,287,323
Financial liabilities:
 Deposits 4,050,473 4,049,798 2,695,976 2,699,484
 Borrowed funds 1,166,064 1,148,630 736,328 739,017
 Subordinated debentures 27,113  26,405  —  —

Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, 
based on relevant market information and information 
about the financial instrument. These estimates do not 
reflect any premium or discount that could result from 
offering for sale at one time the Company’s entire holdings 

of a particular financial instrument. Because no market 
exists for a significant portion of the Company’s financial 
instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments 
regarding future expected loss experience, current eco-
nomic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial 
instruments, and other factors. These estimates are  



Provident Financial Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries  Page 52



subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and mat-
ters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be 
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions 
could significantly affect the estimates.

Fair value estimates are based on existing on- and off- 
balance sheet financial instruments without attempting 
to estimate the value of anticipated future business and 

the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered 
financial instruments. Significant assets and liabilities 
that are not considered financial assets or liabilities include 
deferred tax assets and premises and equipment. In addi-
tion, the tax ramifications related to the realization of the 
unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect 
on fair value estimates and have not been considered in 
the estimates.

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)

 19. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following tables are a summary of certain quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 
2003. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes the result of operations from 
January 15, 2003, the date the Company completed its Plan of Conversion. Fourth quarter 2004 earnings were favorably 
impacted by a $1.9 million, or $0.03 per share, reduction of a valuation allowance pertaining to charitable contribution 
carry-forwards created in connection with the formation of The Provident Bank Foundation. 

2004 Quarter Ended

(In thousands except per share data) March 31  June 30  September 30  December 31

Interest income $46,987 $45,317 $66,908 $70,331
Interest expense 12,585  12,821  19,978  21,801

 Net interest income 34,402 32,496 46,930 48,530
Provision for loan losses 600  1,050   1,050  900

 Net interest income after provision for loan losses 33,802 31,446 45,880 47,630
Non-interest income 7,656 6,716 8,200 6,579
Non-interest expense 26,666  26,077  34,340  32,251

 Income before income tax expense 14,792 12,085 19,740 21,958
Income tax expense 4,498  3,504  6,397  4,875

 Net income $10,294  $ 8,581  $13,343  $17,083

 Basic earnings per share 0.19 0.16 0.19 0.25

 Diluted earnings per share 0.19  0.16  0.19  0.24

 2003 Quarter Ended

(In thousands except per share data)  March 31  June 30  September 30  December 31

Interest income $ 47,178 $ 47,045 $43,854 $46,429
Interest expense 14,919  14,063  13,117  12,534

 Net interest income 32,259 32,982 30,737 33,895
Provision for loan losses 600  300  160  100

 Net interest income after provision for loan losses 31,659 32,682 30,577 33,795
Non-interest income 5,477 5,129 6,751 6,477
Non-interest expense 47,529  24,697  25,728  28,825

 Income before income tax expense (benefit) and the 
  cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (10,393) 13,114  11,600 11,447
Income tax expense   (3,950)  4,276   3,462  3,236

 Net income   $  (6,443)  $ 8,838  $ 8,138  $   8,211

 Basic earnings per share (0.12) 0.15 0.14 0.15

 Diluted earnings per share   (0.12)  0.15  0.14  0.15
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 20. Earnings Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the outstanding shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations.

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
For the Year Ended 

December 31,
2004  2003

Net income $49,301  $17,755

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 61,576,544 57,835,726
Plus:
 Dilutive DDFP shares 343,498 —
 Dilutive stock options 12,131  129,914

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 61,932,173  57,965,640

Earnings per share:
 Basic $  0.80 $  0.31
 Diluted $  0.80 $  0.31

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes the result of operations from 
January 15, 2003, the date the Company completed its Plan of Conversion. Anti-dilutive stock options and awards 
totaling 6,020,295 shares at December 31, 2004, were excluded from the earnings per share calculations. 

 21. Parent-only Financial Information

The condensed financial statements of Provident Financial Services, Inc. (parent company only) are presented below:

Provident Financial Services, Inc.

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2004  2003

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 40,755 $ 5,356
Short-term investments 25,300  68,966

 Total cash and cash equivalents 66,055  74,322

Securities available for sale, at fair value 35,843 100,456
Investment in Subsidiaries 942,272 517,640 
Due from Subsidiary – SAP 42,331 47,333
ESOP Loan 77,498 78,990
Accrued interest receivable 29 200
Other assets 753  63 

  Total assets $ 1,164,781  $ 819,004

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Subordinated debentures 27,113 —
Other liabilities 892 1,885
Total stockholders’ equity 1,136,776  817,119

  Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,164,781  $ 819,004
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Provident Financial Services, Inc. 
Condensed Statements of Income

Year Ended 
December 31,

January 15 to 
December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)  2004    2003 

Income:
Dividends from Subsidiary $ 239,189 $ —
Interest income 3,633 2,484
Investment income 3,022 2,917
Other income  12   — 

Total income  245,856   5,401 

Interest expense 907 —
Non-interest expense  1,536   28,410 

Total expense  2,443   28,410 

Income (loss) before income tax expense $ 243,413 $ (23,009)
Income tax expense  164   89 

Income (loss) before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary 243,249 (23,098)
(Dividends in excess of earnings) Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary  (193,948)   41,842 

Net income  $ 49,301   $ 18,744 

Provident Financial Services, Inc. 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended 
December 31,

January 15 to 
December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)  2004    2003 

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 49,301 $ 18,744
Adjustments to reconcile net income to

Dividends in excess of earnings (Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary) 193,948 (41,842)
Contribution to The Provident Bank Foundation  — 24,000
ESOP expense  3,026 2,736
SAP expense 5,197 1,918
Stock option expense 3,489 1,689
Gain on sales of securities available for sale (743) —
Decrease in Due from Subsidiary—SAP 5,002 —
Increase in other assets (519) (6,606)
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities  (6,369)   1,886 

Net cash provided by operating activities  252,332   2,525 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of available for sale securities (109,226) (376,616)
Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities 71,584 29,257
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of securities available for sale 103,891 243,903
Net decrease (increase) in ESOP loan 1,492 (78,990)
Cash consideration paid to acquire First Sentinel, net of  
 cash and cash equivalents received (239,092) —
Investment in subsidiary  —   (304,366)

Net cash used in investing activities  (171,351)   (486,812)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of stock, net — 567,214
Purchases of treasury stock (70,909) —
Purchases of SAP shares (3,565) —
Stock option exercises 99 —
Cash dividends paid  (14,873)   (8,605)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities  (89,248)   558,609 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (8,267) 74,322
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  74,322   — 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 66,055   $ 74,322 

notes to consolidated financial statements  (continued)
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report of independent registered public accounting firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Provident Financial Services, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated  
statements of financial condition of Provident Financial 
Services, Inc. and subsidiary (the “Company”) as of 
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and 
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period 
ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s man-
agement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the stand-
ards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material mis-
statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,  

 

the financial position of Provident Financial Services, Inc. 
and subsidiary as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for each  
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 
2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted account-
ing principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards 
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the effectiveness of Provident Financial 
Services, Inc. and subsidiary’s internal control over finan-
cial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 11, 
2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s 
assessment of, and the effectiveness of, internal control 
over financial reporting.

Short Hills, New Jersey 
March 11, 2005


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 report of independent registered public accounting firm on  
internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Provident Financial Services, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included  
in the accompanying Management Report on Internal 
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Provident 
Financial Services, Inc. and subsidiary (the “Company”) 
maintained effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission. Management of the Company 
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on manage-
ment’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards 
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan  
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether effective internal control over financial 
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our 
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal 
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s 
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operat-
ing effectiveness of internal control, and performing  
such other procedures as we considered necessary in  
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting  
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples. A company’s internal control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposi-
tions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorizations of manage-
ment and directors of the company; and (3) provide  
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over 
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness 
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or proce-
dures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Provident 
Financial Services, Inc. and subsidiary maintained effective 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 
31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission. Also, in our opinion, Provident 
Financial Services, Inc. and subsidiary maintained, in all 
material respects, effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria estab-
lished in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued  
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards 
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the consolidated statements of financial 
condition of Provident Financial Services, Inc. and sub-
sidiary as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, changes in stockhold-
ers’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the 
three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and our 
report dated March 11, 2005 expressed an unqualified 
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Short Hills, New Jersey
March 11, 2005
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management’s report on internal control over financial reporting

The management of Provident Financial Services, Inc. 
(the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting. The Company’s internal control system is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance to the 
company’s management and board of directors regarding 
the preparation and fair presentation of published finan-
cial statements.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
includes policies and procedures that pertain to the main-
tenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets; 
provide reasonable assurances that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles  
generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
that receipts and expenditures are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and the 
directors of the Company; and provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding prevention or timely detection of unau-
thorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on our financial 
statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, 
have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems 
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable 
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation 
and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that  
controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the  
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 
31, 2004. In making this assessment, we used the criteria 
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework. Based on the assessment management believes 
that, as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting is effective based on 
those criteria.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting 
firm that audited the consolidated financial statements 
has issued an audit report on our assessment of, and the 
effectiveness of, the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.
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branch locations

78 branch locations  
(24 more than last year) 
and a centralized Loan 
Center have increased 
our delivery capabilities 
to an expanded  
customer base.78
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Corporate Headquarters
Jersey City, NJ

Loan Center
Woodbridge, NJ

Bayonne (2), Belleville, Berkeley Twp., Bloomfield (3), Brick Twp. (2), Bridgewater, Clark, Denville, Dumont, Dunellen, East Brunswick (2), East Windsor, 

Edison (2), Fanwood, Fords, Freehold (2), Green Brook, Hazlet (2), Highland Park, Hillsborough Twp., Hoboken, Hopelawn, Howell, Iselin, Jackson, 

Jersey City (8), Kearny, Keyport, Leonia, Manasquan, Metuchen, Milltown, Middletown, Monroe Twp. (2), Montgomery Twp., Morris Plains, New Providence, 

North Brunswick, Ocean Grove, Ocean Twp., Old Bridge, Oradell, Perth Amboy, Piscataway (2), Point Pleasant Beach, Rocky Hill, Roseland, Somerset, 

South Amboy, South Orange, South River, Spotswood, Teaneck, Toms River, Union City, Wall Twp., West New York (3), Woodbridge (2)

DIRECTORS

Paul M. Pantozzi
Chairman of the Board and  
Chief Executive Officer

John G. Collins
Former President, Fleet NJ

J. Martin Comey
Former Vice President,  
Schering-Plough Corporation

Geoffrey M. Connor
Partner, Reed Smith LLP

Frank L. Fekete
Managing Partner, Mandel,  
Fekete & Bloom, CPAs

Carlos Hernandez
President, New Jersey City University

William T. Jackson
Executive Director, Bayview/ 
New York Cemetery

David Leff
Former Partner, Eichenbaum, Kantrowicz, 
Leff & Gulko, Attorneys

Arthur McConnell
President, McConnell Realty

John Mulkerin
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer, 
First Sentinel Bancorp, Inc.

Edward O’Donnell
President, Tradelinks Transport, Inc.

Thomas E. Sheenan
President, Sheenan Funeral Home

Jeffries Shein
Principal JGT Management Co., LLC

MANAGEMENT—
Provident Financial Services, Inc.

Paul M. Pantozzi
Chairman of the Board and  
Chief Executive Officer

Christopher Martin
President

Kevin J. Ward
Vice Chairman

Linda A. Niro
Senior Vice President and  
Chief Financial Officer

John F. Kuntz
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Kenneth J. Wagner
Senior Vice President—Investor Relations

MANAGEMENT—
The Provident Bank

Paul M. Pantozzi
Chairman of the Board and  
Chief Executive Officer

Christopher Martin
President

Kevin J. Ward
Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer

Donald Blum
Executive Vice President and  
Chief Lending Officer

Gregory French
Senior Vice President—Market Development 
and Delivery

Linda A. Niro
Senior Vice President and  
Chief Financial Officer

John F. Kuntz
Senior Vice President and General Counsel

d
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y 
cu

rr
an

 &
 c

on
no

rs
, i

nc
. /

 w
w

w
.c

u
rr

an
-c

on
no

rs
.c

om

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of stockholders will be 
held on April 27, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. at the 
Hilton Newark Airport, 1170 Spring Street, 
Elizabeth, New Jersey, 07201. Notice of the 
meeting and a proxy statement are included 
with this mailing to stockholders of record as 
of March 4, 2005.

Stock Listing
Provident Financial Services, Inc. is listed on 
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) and 
trades under the ticker symbol PFS.

Transfer Agent
Stockholders wishing to change address or 
transfer ownership of stock certificates, report 
lost certificates or inquire regarding other stock 
registration matters are instructed to contact:

Registrar and Transfer Company
Investor Relations Department  
10 Commerce Drive  
Cranford, NJ 07016-3572  
1 (800) 368-5948  
www.rtco.com  
email: info@rtco.com

Contact Information
Information regarding The Provident  
Bank and Provident Financial Services,  
Inc. is available on our web site:  
www.providentnj.com

Those seeking additional information  
regarding PFS should contact:
Kenneth J. Wagner
Senior Vice President—Investor Relations
830 Bergen Avenue, Jersey City, NJ 07306  
1 (201) 915-5344  
email: ken.wagner@providentnj.com

Independent Public Accountants
KPMG LLP  
150 JFK Parkway  
Short Hills, NJ 07078

board of directors & corporate management

http://www.curran-connors.com
http://www.rtco.com
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